
WEST FELICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

ST. FRANCISVILLE. LOUISIANA 

JUNE 30. 2018 

rinr^fmfn? u is a public 

appropnate, at the office of the parish clertc ofSJt 

Release Date JAN 0 9 2019 

•p&N 
Postlethwaite & NettervHIe 

A profevitiflai A^.ctxuMirtC^ Cor}.*3id;wr 

WA-fcprtcpiicorn 



WEST FELICIANA PARISH SC HOOL BOARD 
ST. FRANCISVILtE. LOUISIANA 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30. 2018 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Independent Auditors' Report 1-3 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - Part I 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 4-13 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Government-Wide Financial Statements fGWFSl 

Statement of Net Position 14 

Statement of Activities 15 

Fund Financial Statements (FFS) 

Governmental Funds: 

Balance Sheet 16 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
to the Statement of Net Position 17 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances !8-l9 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds - Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balance to Statement of Activities 20 

Proprietary Funds - Group Insurance Internal Service Fund 

Statement of Net Position 2! 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 22 

Statement of Cash Flows 23 

Fiduciary Funds: Statement of Fiduciary Net ['osiiion 24 

Notes to the Financial Statements 25-53 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ~ Pari II 

Major Fund Descriptions 54 

Budgetary Comparison Schedules: 

General Fund 55 

Schedule of Changes in Iota! Other Post-Employment Ikncllts Liability and Related Ratios 56 



TABLE OF CONTENTS fcoiHinued) 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - Part II (continued) 

Schedule of School Board's Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liability for the Retirement Systems 57 

Schedule of Employer Contributions to the Retirement Systems 58 

Notes to Required Supplementaiy Infonnation 59-60 

Other Supplemental Information: 

Non-major Governmental Funds: 

Non-major Governmental Fund Descriptions 61-63 

Combining Balance Sheet 64-67 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance 68-71 

Schedule of Board Members' Compensation 72 

Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to the Superintendent 73 

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards 74-75 

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on internal Control 
Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 76-77 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Accompanying Notes 78-79 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 80-81 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 82-86 

Performance and Statistical Data: 

Independent Accountants' Report on Applying Agrecd-Upon Procedures 87-89 

Description of Schedules 90 

Prescribed Schedules 91-92 



•p&N 
Posllethwaite & NetlervHte 

35f>0 United Pisza Blvd - Ste lOOi - Baton Rouge. LA 70B0g 
225-922-i^600 Phone - 225-922-4611 Fax ~ pncpACOfn 

4 f^o^r'-'-torKU Coiooratioiy 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT 

The Members of the 
West Feliciana Parish School Board 
St. Francisville. Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fiind information of the West Feliciana Parish School Board (the School Board) as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the fmancial statements^ which collectively comprise the School 
Board's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation ofthese financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors* Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that wc plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in (he financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of tlie financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the School Board's preparation and fair presentation of the fmancial 
statements tn order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the puipose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School Board's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as vvcll as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence vve have obtained is suftlcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial staiemciUs referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnalion of 
the School Board, as of June 30. 2018, and the res|>eciive changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Slates 
of America. 
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Emphasis of Matter 

As described in Note 1 o to the financial statements, the School Board adopted Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement N umber IS ̂ Accounting and Financial Reporting/or Postemploymem Benefits Other Than 
Pensions for the year ended June 30,2018. This new standard requires the School Board to recognize and report its 
total other post-employment benefit liability, measured according to actuarial methods and approaches prescribed 
within the standard along with certain disclosures. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion 
and analysis, the budgetaty comparison information, the schedules of changes in total other post-employment benefits 
liability and related ratios, the schedule of the school board's proportionate share of the net pension liability for the 
retirement systems, the schedule of employer contributions to the retirement systems and the notes to required 
supplementary information presented on pages 4 through 13, page 55, page 56, page 57, pages 58 through 60, 
respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Boards who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, 
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the infonnation and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the School Board's basic financial statements as a whole. The combining non-major governmental fund financial 
statements; the schedule of board members' compensation; and the schedule of compensation, benefits, and other 
payments to the superintendent on pages 61 through 71, page 72, and page 73, respectively, are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Hie accompanying 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards on pages 78 through 79 is also presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200. 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and isalsonota 
required part of the basic financial statements. 

-2-



p&N 
PosUethwaite & NetlerviUe 

The combining non-major governmental fund financial statements; the schedule of board members' compensation; 
the schedule of compensation, benefits, and other pa>Tnents to the superintendent; and the schedule ofexpendituresof 
federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic fmanciai statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in llie United States of America. In our opinion, the infonnation is fairly stated 
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The information included in the performance and statistical data section on pages 90 through 92 have not been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government A udiiing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 19,2018, on our 
consideration of the School Board's internal control over fmanciai reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grants agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over fmanciai reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School 
Board's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
December 19,2018 
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VVFST FF.LICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2018 

Our discussion and analysis of the financial pcrtbmiancc of the West Fehciana Pansh Schwl 
Board (the School Board) provides an overview of the School Board's financial activities for the 
fiscal year ended June .^0. 2018. Please read this discussion and analysis in conjunction with the 
School Board's basic financial statements, which are presented immediately following fins 
Management's Discussion and Analysis. This document focuses on the current year's activities, 
resulting changes, and currently known facts in comparison with the prior year's information 
(where available). 

Financiaii Highlights 

• The School Board's liabilities and deferred inflows of resources exceeded assets and 
deferred outflows of resources by S37.848,315 at the close of the fiscal year 2018. Of 
this net position deficit amount, there is a $52,308,872 unrestricted net deficit 
predominantly due to the recording of the other post-employment benefit obligation of 
$23,824,326 and a net pension liability of $37,437,447. 

• The School Board's total net position increased by $467,605 during the current fiscal 
year. 

• The School Board adopted a new accounting standard regarding the reporting of the total 
other post-employment benefit liability. As a result, the liability as of June 30. 2017 was 
restated from $8,595,875 to $24,344,739. The liability at June 30. 2018 decreased 
$520,413. or 2.1% as a result of changes in the valuation by the School Board s actuary. 

. Net pension liability decreased $1,525,083, or 3.9% as a result of changes in the 
valuation by the actuary. 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the School Boards governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $7,379,873. an increase of $210,460 in comparison 
with the prior year. Of this fund balance. $7,096,287 Is available for spending at the 
School Board's discretion (unassigned fuml hahmce). 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the School Board's 
general fund was $7,126,403 or 24.9% of total general fund expenditures. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

riie discussion and analv.sis is Intended to serve as an intnxliiction to the School Board's financial 
statements. The School'Board's financial statements comprise three components; Management's 
Discussion and Analysis (this section), the basic financial statements (including the notes to the 
financial statements), and required supplementary information. The following graphics illustrates 
the minimum requirements lor Special Purpose Governments; 
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WEST FELICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCISSION AND ANALYSIS 

AS OF JLNE30, 2018 

Required supplementary information 
(Other thanMD&A) 

Government-wide Tinancial statements - The government-wide financial statements arc 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the School Board's finances, in a 
manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net position presents infonnation on all of the School Board's assets and 
deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the 
difTerence between the items reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases 
in net position ma>' serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the 
School Board is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of aaivities presents infonnation showing how llie government's net 
position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are 
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of 
the timing or related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this 
statement fur some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., 
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

The govemmeni-wide tmancial statements can be found on pages 14-15 of this report. 
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WFST FELICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

AS OF .11 NE 30, 2018 

Fund financial statements - A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to 
maintain control over resources tliat have been segregated for specific activities or 
objectives. The School Board, like other stale and local governments, uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. Ail of the funds of the School Board can be divided into three categories: 
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Govemmenta! funds. Govemmenial funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial .statements, governmental 
fund financial statements focus on near-tenn inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal 
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing 
requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for go\ernmemal 

funds with similar information presented tor ffovenmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term 
impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund 
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The School Board maintains individual governmental funds. Intbnnation is presented 
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. 

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are used to account for health insurance service 
costs of the School Board in an internal service fund. 

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of 
parties outside the governmental entity. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the 
government-wide financial statement because the School Board cannot use these funds to 
finance its operations. 

The School Board uses agency funds to account for resources held for student activities 
and groups and sales ta.\ collections for other taxing authorities. The statement of 
fiduciary fiind net pt?sition can be found on page 24 of this report. 

Notes to the basic financial statements - The notes provide additional information that 
is essential for a full understanding of the data provided in the govcmmcnt-vvide and fund 
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 25 to 
53 of this report. 
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WEST FELICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2018 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's 
financial position. In the case of the School Board, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 
exceeded assets and deferred outflows of resources by $37,848,315 at the close of the most recent 
fiscal year, and thus caused a deficit net position. The comparative stateinents below show the 
composition of June 30, 20)8 and 2017: 

Statements of .Net Position 
as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 

2017 
2018 (as restated) 

Assets 
Cash and cash equi^lents $ 940,844 $ 973,201 
Certificate of deposit 100,000 I00,0<» 
Investments 8,395,047 7.910,642 
Receivables 270,424 377,467 
Inventory 30,116 25,049 
t^nd, building, and equipment, net 14,249,438 15,039,825 

Total assets 23.985,869 24,426.184 

Deferred outflows of resources 7.864.618 7.386,611 

Liabilites 
Accounts pa>'able and accrued expenses 2.527,145 2,387,498 
Unearned revenues 13,459 12,196 
Long-term liabilities 

Due within one year 1,030,624 973,349 
Due in more than one year 365,067 160,363 

Other post-employment benefit obligation 23,824,326 24,344.739 
Net pension liability 37.437,447 38.962.530 

Total liabilities 65,198,068 66.840,675 

Deferred inflows of resources 4.500,734 3^288,040 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 14.207.087 14,932,379 
Restriced for capital projects 253,470 276.521 
Unre^rictcd (deficit) (52.308.872t (53,524,820) 

Total net position S (37.848-315) $ (38,315.920) 

Net position as of June 30, 2017 has been restated to reflect the adopting of the new accounting 
standard regarding the reporting of other post-employment benefit obligation. 
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WEST FELICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCLSSION AND ANALYSIS 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2018 

Government-wide Financial Analysis (continued) 

• The largest portion of the School Board's net position reflects its Investment in capital 
assets (e.g. land, buildings, furniture and equipment); less any related debt used to 
acquire those assets that is sttll outstanding. The School Board uses these capital assets 
to provide services to students; consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending. Although the School Board's investment in capital assets is reported net of 
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be 
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to 
liquidate these liabilities. 

• Unrestricted net /position contains a deficit of $52,308,872 of total net position, which is 
predominantly due to the net pension liability of $37,437,447 and the total other post-
employment benefits obligation of $23,824,326 exceeding assets available to service 
those liabilities. 

• Restrictions on net position of $253,470 are to be used for capital improvements to the 
Julius Freyhan building and other major capital assets. 
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WEST FELICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MANAGEMENT'S DlSCliSSION AND ANALYSIS 

AS OF.IliNE30, 2018 

The School Board's net position increased by $467,605 during the current fiscal year. The 
following discussion and analysis on governmental activities focuses on this: 

Expenses 

Changes in Net Position 
for the years ended June 30,2018 and 2017 

Program revenues 

General revenues 

2018 2017 

Change in net position 

Charges for services $ 40,383 $ 183,049 
Operating grants 3.608,606 3,595,163 

Property taxes 9,635,480 9,863,173 
Sales and use taxes 8.123.942 7,548,417 
Earnings on Investments 115,776 54,239 
MFP 10,543,895 9,493,197 
Other 473,263 304.703 
Total 32.541,345 31,041,941 

Regular education 9,978,130 9.960.845 
Special education 3,162,112 3.056.855 
Other education 3,216.996 2.688,958 
Pupil support 1,245,250 1,373,590 
Instructional .staff 1,766,894 2.183,710 
General administrative services 822,927 767.662 
School administrative services 1.919,076 1,894,921 
Business services 630,180 705,844 
Plant operations and maintenance 4,226,310 4.083,712 
Transportation 1,842.024 1,952.790 
Technical support and central services 1,896.003 1,544,699 
Food service 1,293,246 1.215,408 
Community service programs 13.000 15.880 
Appropriations ~ chaner schools 59.605 51,706 
Interest and bank charges (debt service) L987 8.395 

32,073.740 31,505.015 
ion $ 467,605 |_(463,074) 

Tlie key elements of the increase of the School Board's net position for the year ended June 
30,2018 are as follows: 

• Overall revenues increased approximately $1,490,000 and expenses increased 
approximately $569,000. Revenues increased predominantly due the increase in MFP of 
approximately $K05I.000. Expenses increased primarily due to tlie School Board 
increasing staff levels by hiring new instructional and non-instructional personnel. 
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WEST FELIC IANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

ASOI Ml NE30, 2018 

• Local revenues consisting of sales and property taxes are approximatiey 55% of total 
revenue. Property taxes have decreased from the prior year by approximatiey $228,000 
or 23.1%. Sales tax revenues have increased approximately $576,000 or 7.6% as a result 
of the increase in business activit>' in the local parish economy. 

• Operating grant revenue, which accounts for approximatiey 11.1% of tcttal revenues, had 
a slight increase of approximatiey $13,000 or less than 1%. 

• Minimum Foundation Program (MFP) revenue increased by approximatiey SK051,000 or 
11.1% in comparison to fiscal year 2017 as their was an adjustment In the School Board's 
provided MFP funding and an increase in the number of students. 

• Total expenses have increased by approximately $569,000 or 1.8% during the fiscal year. 
Additional staff was hired for continued implementation of educational initiatives. 

Financial Analysis of the School Board's Funds 

As noted earlier, the School Board uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance 
with finance-related legal requirements. 

Govermnenial funds. The focus of the School Board's governmental funds is to provide 
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such 
information is useful in assessing the School Board's financing requirements. In particular. 
unassignedfund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available 
for spending at the end of the fiscal year. As the School Board completed the year, its 
governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $7,379,873 and unassigned fund 
balance of $7,096,287. 

• The focus of governmental funds is narrower than that ol'the government-wide financial 
statements; it is useful to compare the infonnatlon presented for governmental fiinds with 
similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long tenn impact of 
the School Board's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance 
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in 
fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental 
funds and governmental activities. 

• The majority of the School Board's financial activity occurs in the general fund. The 
fund balance at June 30. 2018. is 57,126,403. This fund balance is a result of accumulated 
operating surpluses from the current and prior fiscal years and serves to sustain the 
system during periods of decreased revenue or major events. 
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WEST FELICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2018 

Variations Between Original and Final Budgets 

Budget amendments were adopted during the year ended June 30, 2018 for the General Fund to 
better reflect actual operations as they evolved through the fiscal year. The General Fund 
amendments were a result of anticipated variance in revenues compared to originally budgeted 
amounts and increases to expenditures. The General Fund, with actual revenues of $29,003,733, 
operated within the available resources as planned through respective budgets. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. The School Board's investment in capital assets for its governmental 
activities as of June 30, 2018. amounts to $14,249,438 (net of accumulated depreciation). 
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, furniture 
and equipment, and vehicles. The total decrease in the School Board's capital assets was 
approximately $790,000 or 5.3%. 

Land 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment and fixtures 
Food services 

2018 

Governmental 
Activities 

2017 

$ 299,441 
12,971,954 

948,693 
29,350 

299,441 
13,713,749 

991,204 
35.431 

Total capital assets $ , $ 15.039.825 

Deprecation in the amount of $ 1,111,236 was recorded for the yczr ended June 30,2018. 

Additional information on the School Board's capital assets can be found in Note 5 to the 
basic financial statements. 



WFST FELICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

AS OF .fUNE 30,2018 

Long-term liabilities. Tlie School Board incurred additional long-term liabilities of 
$261,979 during the year ended June 30. 2018. A liability for claims and judgments increased 
by $30,000. capital leases decreased by $65,095, while compensated absences experienced a 
net increase of $297,074. 

The School Board's long-term liabilities consists of net other post-employment benefit obligation, 
compensated absences, capital leases, claims and judgments, and tlie net pension liability (See 
table below.) 

Long-Term Liabilities at June 30, 
2018 2017 

Compensated absences 
Capital lease 
Claims and judgments 

1.203,340 
42.351 
150,000 

906,266 
107,466 
120,000 

$ 1.395.691 $ 1,133,712 

Additional information on the School Board's long-term liabilities can be found in Note 6 to the 
basic financial statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

Properly tax is the largest local source of revenue for the School Board and is estimated at $1L8 
million and approximately 39% of revenues. The Louisiana Tax Commission changed the way 
tax revenues in Louisiana's nuclear power plants is allocated. This results in an estimated 
additional $2.2 million in property tax revenue for the School Board. 

Sales and use tax revenues are the second largest source of local revenue for the School Board 
and budgeted for approximately 24% of total revenues. The School Board is expecting a decrease 
of approximately 10% in such revenues in the 2018-2019 period. 

MFP funding, approximately 33% of revenue, approved in the Legislative session. The MFP 
decreased due to increased local level revenues. 

The budgeted amounts for salaries includes increases. The General Fund continues to cover short 
falls in 8G Early Childhood, Lunch Fund, and the Head Start programs. Also, benefits have 
increased due to increased employer rale for Teacher's Retireinent. riic adopted budget for the 
2018-2019 fiscal period is balanced in the General fund. 
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WEST KELICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCLiSSION AND ANALYSIS 

AS OF JUNE 30,2018 

Contacting the School Board's Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens and taxpayers with a general overview of 
the School Board's finances and to demonstrate the School Board's accountability for the money 
it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial infonnation, 
contact the School Board Office, Misty Cook. Business Manager, West Feliciana Parish School 
Board, P.O. Box 1910, St. Francisvilic, LA 70775. 
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WEST FELICIANA PARiSII SCHOOL BOARD 
ST. FRANCISVILLE. LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNF3n. 2018 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Certificate of deposit 
Investments 
Receivables 
Inventory 
Capital assets, net 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES - PENSION RELATED 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Unearned revenues 
Long-term liabilities 

Due within one vear 
Compensated absences payable 
Capital lease 

Due in more than one year 
Claims and iudgmcnts 
Capital lease 
Compensated absences payable 

Total other post-employment benefit obligation 
Net pension liability 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred amounts related to net pension liability 
Deferred amounts related to other post-employment benefits obligation 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Capital projects 
Unrestricted (Deficit) 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

940.844 
100.000 

8^95,047 
270,424 
30,116 

14.249.438 

23.985,869 

7,864,618 

2,527,145 
13,459 

1.005,612 
25.012 

150.000 
17.339 

197.728 
23.824.326 
37.437.447 

65.198,068 

3,856.221 
644.513 

4^00,734 

14,207,087 

253.470 
(52.308.872) 

? (3^848,315) 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these statements. 
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WESTF>:tJC I \N \ PARISH S< IKK>|. BOARi) 
ST. FR\NnSVII ITU ISIAV^ 

STATK.MKM' OF AC 11VH IKS 
Ji NK30, 2UI8 

Program Revenues 
Operating 

Nd (Kxpcnse) 
Revenue and 

Expenses 
Charecs for 

Services 
Grants and 

Contributions 
Changes in Net 

Position 
runctlon&Troj5"dms 

Instruction: 
Regular education programs S 9,978.130 S $ 801,964 S (9,176.166) 
Special education programs 3.162.112 254,339 (2.907.773) 
Other cduc^km r^grams 3.216.996 258.768 (2.958.228) 

Support Services: 
Pupil support services 1.245.250 100.134 (1,145.116) 
Instructional staff services 1.766,894 142.063 (1.624,831) 
(Jcncral administration services 822.927 66,199 (756,728) 
School adminisiraiion services 1.919.076 154,319 (1.764,757) 

Business services 630.180 50.614 (579.566) 

Plant operation and maintenance 4.226.310 339.946 (3.886,364) 
Transportation 1.842.024 148.148 (1.693,876) 
Technical support and central services 1.8%.003 152.581 (1,743.422) 

Non-lnsiructional Services: 
Food service IJ93.246 40J83 1.138.483 (114,380) 
Communilv service programs 13.000 - 1.048 (11.952) 

Appropriaikms - charter schools 59.605 • - (59,605) 
Debt Service: 

(ntercsi and bank charges 1.987 . (1.987) 

Total (jovcmmcnial Activities $ 32.073.740 

Local sources 
Taxes. 

$ 40.383 $ 3.608.606 $ (28,424.751) 

Ad valorem 
Sales and use (axes 

HiUiiings on invcsimcnl-s 
Ollwr 

Stale sources: 
Minimum foundolbn profvam (MFP) 

Total Bcneral revenues 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position - Julv 1.2017 (as restated) 

Net Position-June 30,201S 

9.635.480 
8.123.942 

115.776 
473,263 

10.543.895 

28.892.356 

467.605 

(38.315,920) 

^ (37.848.315) 

The accompanving notes are an integral part of this statement 
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WEST FKLK lANA r.NRISil SniOOL BOAR!) 
sr.KRAMISVII.LK.I.OllSIANA 

CiOVERNVlEMAI.HNDS 
BALAN<T: SHEET 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Certificate of dcpcsil 
Investments 
Receivables 
Due from other ftin<b 
Inventory 

General 

639.083 
100.000 

8.395.047 
83.815 
71.493 

Other 
Non-Maior 

; 301.751 

186.609 
93,371 
30.116 

Total 

S 940.8.34 
100.000 

8J95.047 
270,424 
164.864 

30.116 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABIIJTIES AND R ND BAL.ANCES 
Liabilities. 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Unearned revenues 
Due to other hinds 

TOTAL LlABILrriKS 

$ 2.162.685 

350 

2.163.035 

$ 204.003 $ 2.366.688 
13.459 13.459 

140.915 141.265 

358.377 2.521.412 

Fund balances: 
Konspendahle 
Spendable 

Restricted for: 
Capital projects 

Unas.Mi:ncd tdcficjl) 

TOTAl. FUND BALANCES 

7-126.403 

7.126.40.3 

.30,116 

253.470 

30,116 

253,470 253.470 
mim 7.^,287 

7J79.873 

rOTAL l.lABILrniuS AND 
RJND BALANCES $ 9.289.438 S 611.847 $ 9,901.285 

The aoctHnpanvine ruites are an mle^al part of this statemem. 
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WEST FFXK lANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
ST. FRANCISVTLLE. LOUISIANA 

RECONCtLlATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30,2018 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Cost of capital assets at June 30. 2018 
Less: Accumulated depreciation as of June 30,2018: 

Buildinas 
Movable iH'opertv 

4L17I.296 

(22.507,002) 
(4.414.856) 

7,379.873 

14.249,438 

Consolidation of internal service fund 

Claims and judgments 

Elimination of interlund assets and liabilities: 
Interfund receivables 
Inierfund payables 

Long-term liabilities at June 30.2018: 
Capital lease payable 
Compensated ^sences payable 

Other post-employment benefit obligation balances in accordance with GASB 75 
Deferred inflow of resources - related to other post-employment benefits 
Net post-employment benefit obligation 

Net pension obligation balances in accordance with GASB 68 
Deferred outflow of resources - related to net pension liability 
Net pension liability 
Deferred inflow of resources - related to net pension liability 

Total net position at June 30,2018 - Governmental Activities 

(170,093) 
170.093 

(42,351) 
(1.203,340) 

(644,513) 
(23,824,326) 

7,864.618 
(37.437.447) 

(3>856.22I) 

(184,046) 

(150.000) 

(1,245.691) 

(24.468,839) 

(33.429.050) 

The accompanymg notes an integral part of this statement. 
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WKS1 FF.trCIANA PARISH SCilOOl. BOARD 
SLiMMisyiLLEaJQlimM 

GON ERNMKM AI- H NOS 
QF C HANGES IN FCND 

FOR THE \E\R KNt)KD .11 NE 50.2018 

General 
Other 

Non^Maior 
RKVtNlKS 

lota! 

Loc<U sources: 
Taxes: 

Ad valorem taxes % 9,635.184 $ 296 $ 9.635,480 
Sales and use taxes 8.123.942 . 8,123.942 

Rentals, teases, and royalties 63.925 ~ 63.925 
Food Sales - 40383 40.383 
Eantings on investments 115.632 138 115,770 
ahcf 231.748 177.590 409,338 

Slate sources: 
Minimum foundation program (MFP) 10,459.927 83.%8 10,543.895 
Restricted grants-in-^id 122,015 44.148 166.163 
Other 203,052 23.404 226.4.56 

Federal sources: 
Restricted grants-in«aid - direct 48308 921787 971,095 
Restricted grants-in-aid - subgraitis - 1159.448 2,159.448 
Commodities - Ufiited St^es Depsmwnt 

of Agriculture - 85.444 85.444 
TOTAL REVENUES 29,003.733 3.537.606 31541.339 

S-PENDITliRES 
urrent: 

Instruction: 
Regular education pro^ams 9.813.286 119.4I6 9.932.702 
Special education programs 2,836.586 433.110 3.269.696 
Other education programs 2.276.410 1.054,246 3.330.656 

Support services: 
Pupil support services 1.230,632 54.631 1.285.263 
losiructional sialTseix'ices !.300357 522,123 L822.68D 
General administration service 820.609 - 820,609 
School administration scrvrces 1.981,741 1-177 1,982.918 
Business services 606,833 39,698 646.531 
Plant operation and maintenance^ 3,567.006 58.473 3,625.479 
Transportation 2,059.36! 19.390 1078.751 
Technical support tmd cemraJ services 1.969.454 . 1.969,454 

Non-Instructional services; 
Food service 11,129 1,324.164 1.335.293 
Communtry service programs 13.000 - 13.000 

Fucility acquisition and construction - 23.484 23.484 
Appropr iations - charter schools 59.605 - 59,605 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement 65.095 - 65.095 
Interest and Nmk charges 1.987 - 1.987 

TOTAL EXPEND! niRES 28.613.291 3.649.912 32.263.203 

EXCESS fDEFIClENCY) OF 
REVENUES OVER EXPENDIlliRF,S $ 390.442 .$ 012.306) S 278.! 36 

(cuntinued) 
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WKST FKIJC lANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
ST. yR.WC ISVtl J i':. l Ol lSiANA 

GOVKRNMi-:NTAL H NDS 
STATEMKNT OF REVKM ES. EXPKNOm RKS AND f I 

FOR UlE YEAR KM)KD JI Mi 30,2018 

Oibcr 

OTHF.R FINANCING SOI RCFS ((iSES) 

, ucpcrai . J>on-Ma|or iotai 

Opcrdiing transfers in S 200.673 S 280,685 S 481.358 
Opcratine transfers out (348.066) (200.%8) (549.034) 

TOTAL OTTIER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) (I47.39:>> 79.717 (67.676) 

EXC ESS (DEFICIENCY) OF 
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES 
EXPENPfTUHE? 'VNP OHJER ISl'S 243.049 (3Z589) 210.460 

Fund balances. June 30. 2017 6,883.354 286,059 7.169.413 

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30.2018 J 25M2£L $ 7.379.873 

(concluded) 

The acconiiwns' inc nolcs are an inicgral part of this statement. 
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ST. FRANCISVILLI-. LOI ISIANA 

RECONC II.IATION OF THE tiOVERNMENTAl. FUNDS -
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITl RES. AND 

CHANGES IN FI ND BAI.ANCE TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTlVmES 
FOR THE VEAR ENDED JI NE 30,2018 

Total Net Changes in Fund Balance - Govcmmcnial Funds $ 210.460 

Capital Assets: 
Capital ouilav capitalized 
Depreciation expense for vear ended June 30.2018 

Net loss of internal service (und consolidated with fioventmental activities 

Long Term Liabilities: 
Increase in claims and iudgments liability 
Decrease in capital lease payable 
Increase of compensated absences earned over amounts used 

Change in other post-employment benefits liability 
and delcrred Inllows in accordance with GASB 75 

$ 320,849 
(1.111236) 

(30.000) 
65.095 

(297.074) 

(790J87) 

(1^> 

(261.979) 

(124,100) 

Change in net pension Uabilliy and deferred inflows and 
outflows in accordanc« with GASB 68 

Change in Net Position - Governmental Activities 

1.434,909 

i iL2M. 

The accompanving notes arc an integral part ol'this staiemein. 
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WF.ST FF.LIC lANA PARISH SCHOOL BOAKI) 
ST. FRANCISVILLK, LOUISIANA 

STATEMFNT OF NKT POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND 
CROUP INSURAIVCF INTERNAL SERVICF FUND 

JUNE 36, 2018 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Due from other funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Liabilities 
Current: 

Claims payable 
Due to other funds 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

Net Position (Deficit) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION (DEFICFr) 

10 
5:229 

5,239 

160,457 
28,828 

189,285 

(184,046) 

5.239 

Tlic accompany inf* notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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VVLST FFXiriANA PARISH S( H(K)L BOARD 
ST. FRANCISVItLK. U)l:ISlANA 

STATKMKNT OF RKVENUES, EXPKNSKS. AND CHANf;KS IN NKT POSITION 
PROPRIKTARV FUND - GROUP INSHRANCF. INTF.RNAi. SFRVICK FtND 

TOR THP YEAR PNDKD JI NK 30, 20IH 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Insurance premiums received 

Total operating revenues 
K420^85 
1,420^85 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Premiums paid 
Claims e>cpense 

Total operating expenses 

1,421.551 
67,714 

1.489,265 

QPERATir^c;; (68.980) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES 
Interest earnings 
Transfers in 

Total fK>n-operating revenues 

6 
67.676 
67.682 

NET LOSS 

NET POSmON AT BfX.INMNG OF YEAR 

(U^) 

(182.748) 

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR (184,046) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statem^t. 
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WEST FELICIANA PARISH SCIHWL BOARD 
ST. FRANC ISVILLE. LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - GROIJI' INSURANCE INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENUEI) JrNE30. 2018 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received for insurance premiums 
Cash payments for premiums 
Cash paid for claims 

Net cash used in operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Operating transfer in from other funds 
Change in due (from) to other funds 
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 

$ U420,285 
(K421,55!) 
(102.9S8) 
(104^54) 

67,676 
23,599 
91,275 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVFJ!»TING ACTIVITIES 
Interest earnings 
Net cash provided by investing activities 

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

(12,973) 

12,983 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 10 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET 
CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net 
cash used in operating activities - change in 
assets and liabilities - decrease in claims payable 

Net cash used in operating activities 

(68,980) 

(35,274) 

$ (104,254) 

The accompanving notes are an Integra! part of this statement. 
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WEST FELIC IANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARP 
ST. KKANC ISVIELE, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF FIDl CIARY NET POSH ION 
BALANCE SHEET 

JUNE 30. 2018 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Total assets 

School 
Activity 

516,198 

516.198 

Sales 
Tax Total 

19 

19 

$ 516.217 

516.217 

LIABILITIES 

Liabilities: 
Deposits due others 

Total liabilities 

516.198 

$ 516,198 

19 516,217 

19 $ 516.217 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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WKST FELICIANA PARISH SCIfOOL BOARD 
ST. FRANCISVIM.E. LOlilSIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL SI ATKMKNTS 

1. Summary of Significant Accouating Policies 

The accompanying basic financial statements of West Feliciana Parish School Board (the School Board) have 
been prepared in confomilty with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Is the 
accepted standards standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting 
principles. The following is a summary of the School Board's significant policies. 

a. Reporting Entity 

The School Board was created by Louisiana Revised Statute (LSA-R.S.) 17:51 for the purpose of providing 
public education for the residents of West Feliciana Parish (the Parish). The School Board is authorized by 
LSA-R.S. 17:81 to establish policies and regulations for its own government consistent with the laws of the 
State of Louisiana and the regulations of the Louisiana Board of Elementary and Secondary Education. The 
School Board is authorized to establish public schools as it deems necessary, to provide adequate school 
facilities for the children of the parish, to determine the number of teachers to be employed, and to determine 
local supplement to their salaries. The School Board is currently comprised of 7 members who are elected from 
7 districts for a term of four years. 

The School Board operates 4 schools within the Parish with a total enrollment of approximately 2,200 pupils. In 
conjunction with the regular educational programs, some of these schools offer special education and/or adult 
education programs. Additionally, the School Board provides transportation and school food services for the 
students. 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Cociiflcalion of Government Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Standard establishes criteria for determining the governmental reporting entity and 
component units that should be included within the reporting entity. Under the provisions, the School Board is 
considered a primirry government, since it is a special purpose government that has a separately elected 
governing body, is legally separate, and is fiscally independent of other state or local governments. Fiscally 
independent means that the School Board may. without the approval or consent of another governmental entity, 
determine or modify its own budget, levy its own taxes or set rates or charges, and issue bonded debt. The 
School Board also has no com/yonent units, defined by GASB as other legally separate organizations for which 
the elected school hoard members are financially accountable. There are no other primary governments with 
which the School Board has a significant relationship. 

b. Fund Accounting 

The financial transactions of the School Board are recorded in individual funds, each of which is considered a 
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures ore.xpenses, as appropriate. 
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WFST FKLICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
ST. FRANC ISVILLF:, LOl ISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

b. Fund Accounting (continued) 

Emphasis of fund finaiiicial reporting is on the major funds. Non-major funds (by category) or fund type are 
summarized into a single column. The only major fund of the School Board is the General Fund. 

Revenues are accounted for in these individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and 
the means by which spending activities are controlled. The funds presented in the financial statements are 
described as follows: 

Governmental Fund Types: 

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the School Board are financed. 
The acquisition, use and balances of the School Board's expendable financial resources and the related 
liabilities are accounted for through governmental funds. The measurement focus is upon determination of 
changes in financial position, rather than upon net income determination. The following are the School 
Board's governmental fund types: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the School Board. It accounts for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that 
are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. These funds account for the revenues and 
expenditures related to federal and state grant and entitlement programs established for various educational 
objectives. 

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund, established to meet requirements of bond ordinances, is used to 
account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of general long-term debt principal, interest, 
and related costs. 

Capital Proiccts Fund - The Capital Projects Fund was established to account for funds dedicated to capital 
improvements, including construction of new facilities and renovations. 

Fiduciary Fund Type - Agency Funds: 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the Schtwl Board in a trustee or agency capacity. The 
agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results or 
operations. 
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WF.ST FELIC IANA PARISii SCHOOL HOARD 
ST. FKANCISVIIXK. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

I E Summan^ of SignificanI Accounting Policies (continued) 
I 

I 
b. Fund Accounting (continued) 

Proprietary Fund Type - Group insurance internal Service Fund 

Proprietary funds account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the determination of net 
income is necessary or usef\il to sound financial administration. Proprietary funds differ from governmental funds 
in that their focus is on income measurement, which, together with the maintenance of equity, is an important 
financial indicator. The School Board has one proprietary fund, which is an internal service fund. The internal 
service fund accounts for the financing of the School Board's employee benefits plan provided to participating 
employees on a cost reimbursement basis, as well as the Other Post-Employment Benefits provided to retirees. 

c. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting 

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display infonnation about the reporting 
government as a whole. These statements include all lire financial activities of the school board, except for the 
Fiduciary Fund. The Fiduciary Fund is only reported as the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position at the Fund 
Financial Statement level. 

The GWFS were prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from the exchange or exchange­
like transactions are recognized when the exchange occurs (regardless of when cash is received or disbursed). 
Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from non-exchange transactions are 
recognized in accordance with the requirements of GASB No. 33. Accounting and Reporting for 
Nonexchange tramactions. 

Program Revenues 

Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities are derived directly from parties outside of 
the school board's taxpayers or citizeniy, as a whole; program revenues reduce the cost of the fiinctbn 
to be financed from the school board's general revenues. 

Allocation of Indirect Expenses 

The school board reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct 
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable by function. Indirect expenses of other functions are not 
allocated to those functions but are rep(>rted separately in the Statement of Activities. Depreciation 
expense which can be specifically identified by function is included in the direct expenses of each 
function. Depreciation on the buildings is assigned to the plant operation and maintenance function 
due to the fact that school buildings serve multiple purposes. Interest on long term debt is considered 
an indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of Activities, 
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WEST FELFCIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
ST. FRANCISVILLE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

h Summan- of SignificaiH Accounting Policies (continued) 

c. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accoiintina (continued) 

Fund Financial Statements (EPS) 

Governmental Funds 

The accounting and financial reporting treatments applied to a fund is determined by its measurement 
focus. All Governmental Funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. 
With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the 
balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financial 
sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 

Governmental Funds are accounted for on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become susceptible to 
accrual - that is, when they become measurable and available to pay current period liabilities. Such 
revenue items are ad valorem taxes, sales taxes and state and federal entitlements. Sales and use taxes 
and ad valorem taxes are considered "available" when expected to be collected within the next two 
months. Revenue from state and federal grants is recorded when the reimbursable expenditures have 
been incurred and is anticipated to be collected within one year. 

Expenditures arc generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related 
fund liability is incurred. Costs of accumulated unpaid vacation, sick leave and other employee benefit 
amounts are reported in the period due and payable rather tlian the period earned by employees and 
general long-ienn obligations principal and interest pavmenls are recognized only when due. 

d. Budget and Budgetary Accounting 

The propo.sed budgets for fiscal year 2018 were completed and made available for public Inspection on 
September 5, 2017 at the School Board office. A public hearing was held on September 12, 2017 for 
suggestions and comments from taxpayers. The proposed fiscal year 2018 budgets were formally adopted by the 
School Board afierthe public hearing. I1ie budgets, which included proposed expenditures and the means of 
financing them for the General and Special Revenue Funds, were published in the official journal ten days prior 
to the public hearings. 

The budgets for the General and S|>ecial Revenue Funds were prepared on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Formal budgetary integration is used during the year as a management control device. 

The School Board is authorized to transfer amounts between line items within any fund. When actual total 
revenues w ithin a fund are failing to meet estimated annual budgeted revenues by Five percent or more, and/or 
actual total expcuditure.s within a fund arc exceeding estimated budgeted expenditures by five percent or more, 
a budget amendment to reflect such changes is adopted by the School Board in an open meeting. Budgeted 
amounts included in the financial statements include the original adopted budget and all .subsequent 
amendments. 
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WEST FKIJCUNA PARISH SC HOOL HOARD 
ST. FRANCISVItCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Sigmficant Accounting PoUctes (continued) 

e- Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 

Under state law, the Sch(x>l Board may deposit funds with a fiscal agent organized under the laws ofthe State of 
Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the union, or the laws of the United States. The School Board may 
invest in United States bonds, notes, bills, or certificates and time deposits of state banks organized under 
Louisiana law and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana, 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash on deposit, certificates of deposit and money market 
accounts. These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market Under state law, the resulting bank 
balances of these deposits must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securiti^ owned by the 
fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all tunes 
equal or exceed the amount on depi^it with the fiscal agent. 

f. Federal Grants Receivable 

Federal ^anls receivable consists of receivables for reimbursement of expenditures under various federal 
programs and grants. All amounts are expected to be collected within the next twelve months. 

g- Inventory 

Inventory ofthe School Food Service Special Revenue Fund consists of food purchased by die School Board 
atid commodities granted by the United States Department of .Agriculture through the Louisiana Department of 
Education, The commodities are recorded as revenues when received. All inventory items purchased are valued 
at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market, and donated commodities are assigned values based on 
information provided by the United States Department of Agriculmre. 

h. Capital Assets 

Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost, or estimated historical cost for assets where the actual historical 
cost is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their acquisition value at the dale of the 
donation. The system for the accumulation of fixed asset cost data does not provide the means for determining 
the percentage of assets valued at actual and those valued at estimated cost. The School Board maintains a 
$5,000 threshold level for capitalizing assets. 

Capital assets are recorded in the CiWFS, but are not recorded in the FFS. All capital assets are depreciated 
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Since surplus assets are sold for an immaterial 
amount when declared as no longer needed tor public school purposes by the school l>oard, no salvage value is 
taken into consideration for depreciation purposes. Useful lives are approximately40 years for buildings and 3 
to 20 years for equipment. 

The School Board does not possess any material amounts of in frastructure capital assets, such as sidewalks and 
parking lots. Amounts expended for such items prior to June 30,2001 were considered to be part ofthe cost of 
buildings or other immovable property such as stadiums. 
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WEST FKLJCIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
ST. FRANCISVfLLE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

I, Summary of Significant AccounUna PoUcies (continued) 

h. Capital Assets (continued) 

The costs of nomial maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of tiie asset or materially extend asset 
lives are not capitalized. 

i. Compensated Absences 

Al 112-month employees earn from 10 to 20 days of vacation leave each year, depending on length of service 
with the School Boaixl. Vacation leave may be accumulated up to 40 days; tlie School Board will pay up to40 
days of unused vacation upon separation. 

All school board employees earn 10 to 12 days of sick leave each year depending on the number of months 
employed within a year. Sick leave may be accumulated without limitation. Upon death or retirement, a 
maximum of 25 days of unused sick leave is paid to the employee or designated heir at the employee's current 
rate of pay. Under the Louisiana Teacher's Retirement System, the unused sick leave is used in the retirement 
benefit computation as earned service. Under the Louisiana School Employees Retirement System, all unpaid 
sick leave, which excludes the 25 days paid, is used in the retirement benefit computation as earned service. 

Any employee with a teaching certificate is entitled, subject to af^rovaJ by the School Board, to one semester of 
sabbatical leave affer three years of continuous ser\'ice or two semesters of sabbatical leave after six or more 
years of continuous service. Leave may be granted for rest and recuperation and professional and cultural 
improvement. 

The cost of compensated absence privileges is recognized as current year expenditure in the General Fund when 
leave is actually taken, or when employees or their heirs are paid for accrued leave upon retirement or death, 
while the cost of leave privileges not requiring current resources is recorded in the general long-term debt. 

j. Pension Plans 

The School Board is a participating employer in three defined benefit pension plans (plans) as described in 
Note 8. For purp>oses of measuring the Net Pension Liability, deferred outflows of resources and defened 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, infonnation about the fiduciary net position of 
each of the plans, and additions to/deductions from each plans' fiduciary net position have been determined on 
the same basis as they are reported by each of the plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds 
of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments have been reported at fair value within each plan. 

k. Sates. Use and Property Taxes 

nie West Feliciana Parish School Board receives a three percent sales tax dedicated for salaries and related 
benefits, payment of principal and interest on any bonds issued by the School Board and for maintaining and 
operating the public schools within the Parish. 
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\Vi:ST FELICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
ST. FRANCISVILLK. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Sumniarv of Significant Accounting Folicics (continued) 

k. Sales. Use and ProperU Taxes (continued) 

Also, the School Board is authorized to collect one percent sales and use tax levied by the West Feliciana Parish 
Police Jury and the Town of St. Francisville for all sales within the incorporated area of the Town of St. 
Francisville. The School Board is authorized to collect a two percent sales and use tax levied by the West 
Feliciana Parish Police Jury for all sales outside the incorporated area of the Town of St. Francisville, 

Ad valorem taxes are collected by the West Feliciana Parish Tax Collector's Office and remitted to the School 
Board on a monthly basis. Values are established by the West Feliciana Parish Assessor's Office each year. 

Ad valorem taxes are assessed and levied on a calendar year basis, based on the assessed value on January I of 
the assessment year. However, before taxes can be levied, the lax roils must be submitted to the Slate Tax 
Commission for approval. Taxes are due and payable by November 15. An enforceable lien attaches on the 
property as of November 15. As of December 31, taxes become delinquent and interest and penalty accrue. 
Taxes are generally collected in January, February and March of the fiscal year. 

I. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities to the dale of tlie financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
dilfer from those estimates. 

m. Inter-fund transactions 

During the course of nonnal operations, the School Board has numerous transactions between funds, including 
expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services, construct assets and service debt. The 
accompanying fund financial statements generally rellect such transactions as operating transfers, 

n. Fund Equity of Fund Financial Statements 

Accounting standards require governmental fund balances to be reported in as many as five classifications as 
listed below: 

Nonspcndabic - lepresenls amounts that are not expected to be converted to cash because they are either not 
in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Spendable 

Restricted - represents balances where constraints have been established by parties outside the School 
Board or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEiMENTS 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Poticies (continued) 

n. Fund Equity ofPund Financial Stalcmeuts (continued) 

Committed - represents balances that can only be used for specific purposes purajant to constrate 
imposed by formal action of the School Board's highest level of decision-making authority. 

Assigned - represent balances that are constrained by the School Board's or its designee's intent to be 
used for specific purposes, but are not restricted nor committed. 

Unassigned - represents balances that have not been assigned to other funds and that have not hem 
restricted, committed, or assi^ed to specific purposes within the general fund. 

When expenditures are incurred for the purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted amounts are 
available, the School Board reduces restricted amounts first, followed by unrestricted amounts. When 
expenditures are incurred for purposes for which committed, assigned, and unassigned amounts are available, 
the School Board reduces committed amounts first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned 
amounts. 

O- Current Year Adaption of New Accounting Standard and Restatement of Net Position 

The School Board adopted Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 75 -
Accouniing and Financial Reporiing for Postemploymeni Benefits Other Than Pensions. The net effect to 
the School Board's Statement of Net Position for the prior year that resulted fiom the adoption of GASB 75 
is as follows: 

Governmental 
Activities 

Total Net Position, June 30,2017 
as previously reported $ (22,567,056) 

Reverse post-employment benefit obligation June 30, 2017 8,595,875 
Record total post-employment benefit Fiability June 30,2017 (24,344,739) 

Net effect (15,784.864) 

Total Net Position, June 30,2017, Restated $ (38,315,920) 

2. Ad Valorem Taxes 

Ad valorem (prof>erty) taxes were levied for the fiscal year 2018 by the School Board on July 15,2017 based on the 
assessed valuation of property as of Januaiy 1,2017. These taxes become due and payable on November 15 of each 
year and become delinquent after December 31 of the year levied. 

Total assessed value was 1301,800,237 in calendar year 2017. Louisiana state law exempts the first S75.000 of 
assessed value of a taxpayer's primar>' residence from parish property ta.\es. This homestead exemption was 
$17,487,696 of the assessed value in calendar year 2017. 
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NOTES TO THF FINANCIAL STATKMKNTS 

2. Ad Valorem Taxes (continued) 

The following is a summaiy of authorized and levied parishwide ad valorem taxes collected during the fiscal year 
ended June 30,2018: 

Authorized 
Millage 

Levied 
Millage 

4.46 
14.75 
3.75 
11.00 

4.46 
14.75 
3.75 
11.00 

Expiration 
Date 

N/A 
2018* 
2021 
2019* 

Constitutional School Tax 
Special 
General Fund 
Consolidated General Fund 

• - renewed for an additional ten years 

3. Cash. Deposits, and Investments 

A. Deposits 

The cany ing amount of the School Board's deposits with financial institutions was $1,557,061 and the bank 
balances were $2,942,294. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the 
School System's deposits may not be returned to them. To mitigate this risk, state law requires deposits to be 
secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent financial institution. As 
of June 30, 2018, the School Board's deposits were not exposed to custodial credit risk. 

Securities that may be pledged as collateral consist of obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies, 
obligations of the State of Louisiana and its municipalities and school districts. 

B. Investments 

As of June 30. 2018, the Board had the following inveslment.s: 

Investment Tvne 
Investments measured at 
the net asset value (NAV) 

E.xtcmal investment pool 

Fair Value 

S 8,395,042 

The $8,395,047 in investments is invested in LAMP. I>AMP is administered by LAMP, Inc.. a non-profit 
corporation organized under the laws of the Stale of Louisiana. Only UKHI government entities having contracted to 
participate in LAMP have an investment interest in its pool of assets. The primary objective of LAMP is to provide 
a safe environment for the placement of public funds in short term, high quality investments. The LAMP portfolio 
includes only securities and other obligations in which U>cal governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in 
accordance with LA-R.S. 33.2955. 

• Credit risk: LAMP is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Cash, Deposits, aod Investments (conlinued) 

B. Investments (continued) 

Interest rate risk: LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate access to their 
account balances, LAMP prepares its own interest mte disclosure using the weighted average maturity 
(WAM) method. The WAM of LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 days and consists of no 
securities with a maturity in excess of397 days or 762 days for U.S. Government tloatingVariable rate 
investments. 

Concentration of credit risk: The District does not have a limit on the amount the District may invest in 
one issuer. One hundred percent of the District's investments are in LAMP funds. 

• Foreign currency risk: Not applicable. LAMP complies with the provisions of Louisiana Law concemii^ 
permissible investments for municipalities, parishes and other political subdivisions set for in La R.S. 
33:2955 and the investment policy does not provide for investment in foreign obligations. 

The investments in LAMP are stated at fair value based on quoted market rates. The fair value is determined on a 
weekly basis by LAMP mid the value of the position in the external investment pool is the same as the value of the 
pool shares. 

LAMP. Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and board of directors. LAMP is not 
registered with the SEC as an investment company. 

An annual atKlit of LAMP is conducted by an independent certified public accountant. The Legislative Auditor of 
the State of Louisiana has full access to the records of LAMP. 

LAMP issues financial reports which can be obtained by writing: LAMP, Inc., 228 St. Charles Avenue, Suite 1123. 
New Orleans, LA 70130. 

4. intcrfund Transaction.s 

Individual balances due fronv'to other funds are iis follows: 

Fund 
Due From Due To 

Other Funds Other Funds 

Governmenl Funds: 
General Fund 
Non-major Funds 

Proprietaiy Funds; 
Group Insurance Internal Service Fund 

Total 

71,493 
93,371 

- 5.229 

350 
140,915 

28J28 
$. 170.093 S_JJM9-3 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

4. Intcrfund Transactions (continued) 

The primary purpose of intcrfund advances is to cover expenditures on cost reimbursement grant programs unti! 
reimbursements are received from the granting agencies. 

Transfers: 

Fund 

Government Funds 
General Fund 
Non-major Funds 

Proprietary Funds 
Group Insurance Interna! Service Fund 

Total 

Transfers 
In 

$ 200,673 
280,685 

67.676 

Transfers 
Out 

348,066 
200,968 

mmi 

The purpose of inrerfund transfers is to cover operating expenditures of the general fund through indirect co^ 
recoveries charged to grant programs and to cover operating deficits of other governmental -non major funds and 
the group insurance internal service fund with tr^sfers from the general fund. 

5. Capital Assets 

Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows: 

Cost 
Land 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment and fixtures 
Food Service equipment 

Accumulated depreciation 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment and fixtures 
Food Service equipment 

Capital assets, net of 
Depreciation 

Additions 
Balance at 

June 30. 2017 

$ 299,441 
35,396,282 

4.821,659 
369.820 -

, 32,0,849 

82,674 
238,175 

$ 21,682.533 
3,830,455 

334,389 

$...15,Q59J_25 

Deletions 

$ 

32,765 
3.990 

$ 
32,765 

3,990 
$_J,U 1,236 $ . .34151 

i79.0J8.7) 

834,469 
280,686 

6.081 

Balance at 
June 30. 2018 

$ 299,441 
35,478,956 
5,027,069 

365,830 

$ 22,507,002 
4,078,376 

336.480 
$ .24921358 

$Jiy4M28 
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NOTES TO THK FINANCIAL STATEMKNTS 

5, Capital Assets (continued) 

Depreciation expense of $ 1.111.236 for the year ended June 30,2018 was charged to the following governmental 
functions: 

Regular education programs $ 88,251 
Special education programs 29,013 
Other educational programs 24,632 
Pupil support services 12,516 
Instructional staff services 20,027 
General administrative services 7,327 
School administrative services 17,229 
Business and central services 6,234 
Plant operation and maintenance 856,426 
Transportation 17,849 
Technical support 14,434 
Food sePi'ice 17298 

6. Long-term Liabilities 

The following is a summary of the changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30,2018: 

Balance 
June 30, 2017 Additions Reductions 

Balance 
June 30, 2018 

Compensated Absences 
Capital Leases 
Claims & Judgments 

S 906,266 
107.446 
120,000 

$1,302,686 

30,000 

$ (1.005,612) 
(65,095) 

$ 1,203,340 
42,351 

150,000 

Total $1,133,712 $1,332,686 $ (1,070,707) $1,395,691 

The following Is a summar> of the current (due in one year or less) and the long-tenn (due in more than one year) 
portions of long-tenn obligations as of June 30,2018: 

Current 
Long-Term 

Compensated 
Absences 

$ 1,005.612 
197,728 

$ 1,203,340 

Capital 

25,012 
17.339 

$ 42.351 

Claims & 
Judgments 

$ 
150,000 

$ 150.000 

folal 
K030,624 

365.067 
$ 1.395,691 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

7. Capital Lease 

The School Board entered into an agreement to lease buses which qualifies as a capital lease. Lease payments are 
scheduled monthly over a seven-year period ending March 26,2020. 

Minimum future capital lease pa>'ments under lease agreements in effect at June 30,2018 are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30, 

2019 $ 25,012 
2020 18,759 

Total minimum lease payments 43,771 
Less: Amount representing interest costs (1,420) 

Present value of minimum lease payments $ 42,351 

8, Retirement Systems 

The School Board (the School Board) is a participating employer in several cost-sharing defined benefit pension 
plans. These plans are administered by three public employee retirement systems, the Teachers' Retirement System 
of Louisiana (TRSL), the Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System (LSERS) and the Louisiana State 
Employees' Retirement System (LASERS). Article X, Section 29(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns 
the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of these plans to the State Legislature. Each system is 
administered by a separate board of trustees and all Systems are component units of the Stale of Louisiana. 

Each of the Systems issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the system. These reports may be obtained by writing, calling or 
downloading the reports as follows: 

TRSL: LSKRS: I.ASFRS 
»40l Untied PJaza Blvd. 8660 United ina/a Blvd. 8401 United Plaza Blvd. 
P, O. Box 94123 Baton Rouge. I.A 70804 P O Box 44213 
Baton Rouge, louisiana 70804-9123 (225)925-6484 Baton Rouge. Louisiana 70804-4213 
(225) 925-6446 \vww.Isers.nel (225) 925-0185 
www.trsl org wvvvs ,lascrsonline.org 

The School Board implemented Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 68 on Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Statement 71 on Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent 
to the Measurement Date - an Amendment of GASB 68. 1 hese standards require the School Board to record its 
proportional share of each of the pension plans Net Pension Liabilit>' and report the following disclosures; 
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NOTES TO THK FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

8. Retirement Systems (continued) 

Plan Descriptions: 

Teachers* Retirement System of Louisiana (TRSL) 

The Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana (TRSL) is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple employer 
defined benefit plan. The plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to employees who meet the 
legal definition of a 'teacher" as provided for in LRS 11:701. The School Board has participants in TRSL's 
Regular Plan and in Plan B. E!igibilit>' for retirement benefits for these plans and the calculation of retirement 
benefits are provided for in LRS 11:761. Most members are eligible to receive retirement benefits 1) at the age of 
60 with 5 years of creditable service. 2) at the age of 55 with at least 25 years of creditable service, or 3) at any age 
with at least 30 years of creditable service. Retirement benefits are calculated by applying a percentage ranging 
from 2% to 3% of final average salary multiplied by years of service. Final average salary is based upon the 
member's highest successive 36 months (highest successive 60 months for members employed after January 1, 
2011). 

In lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirement, an eligible member can begin participation in 
the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) on the first retirement eligibility date for a period not to exceed 
the 3rd anniversary of retirement eligibility. Delayed participation reduces the three-year participation period. 
During participation, benefits otherw ise payable are fixed, and deposited in an individual DROP account. Upon 
termination of DROP, the member can continue employment and earn additional accruals to be added to the fixed 
pre-DROP benefit. Upon tennination of empbyment, the member is entitled to the fixed benefit, an additional 
benefit based on post-DROP service (if any), and the individual DROP account balance which can be paid in a 
lump sum or an additional annuity based upon the account balance. 

Under LRS 11:778. members who have suffered a qualified disability are eligible for disability benefits if 
employed prior to January 1, 2011 and have five or more years creditable service, or if employed on or after 
January 1. 2011 and attained at least 10 years of creditable service. Members employed prior to January 1,2011 
receive disability benefits equal to2'/3%ofhis average compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service, 
but not more than 50% of his average compensation subject to statutory minimums. Members employed on or after 
Januar>^ 1.2011 receive disability benefits equal to the regular reliremeiu formula without reduction by reason of 
age. 

Survivor benefits are provideti for in LRS 11:762. In order for survivor benefits to be paid, the deceased member 
must have been in state service at the time of death and must have a minimum of five years of service credit, at 
least two of which were earned immediately prior to death, or must have had a minimum of twenty years of service 
credit regardless of when earned. Survivor benefits are equal to 50% of the benefit to which the member would 
have been entitled if he had retired on the date of his death using a factor of 2'/6% regardless of years of service or 
age, or $600 per month, whichever is greater. 
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8. Retirement Systems tcontinucd) 

Louisiana School Emnlovccs^ Retirement System (LSERS) 

The Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System (LSERS) is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple 
employer defined benefit pension plan. The plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to school 
employees as defined in LRS 11; 1002. Eligibility for retirement benefits and the calculation of retirement benefits 
are provided for in LRS 11:1141. Members who joined the system on or before June 30, 2010 are eligible for 
regular retirement benefits upon attaining 30 years of service at any age, 25 years of service and aged 55 years, 20 
years of service regardless of age with an actuarially reduced benefit, or 10 years of service and aged 60 years. 
Members who joined the system after June 30, 2010 are eligible for regular retirement upon attaining at least 5 
years of service and aged 60 years or 20 years of service regardless of age with an actuarially reduced benefit For 
membcre employed prior to July I, 2010, the maximum retirement benefit is equal to 3/3% of the average 
compensation for the three highest consecutive years of service (five highest consecutive years for members 
employed between July 1,2006 and June 30,2010). subject to a 10% salary limitation, multiplied by the number of 
years of service limited to 100% of final average compensation plus a supplementary allowance of $2 per month for 
each year of service. For members employed on or after July 1.2010, the ma^timum retirement benefit is equal to 
214% of the average compensation for the five highest consecutive years of service, subject to a 15% salary 
limitation, multiplied by the number of years of service limited to 100% of final average compensation plus a 
supplementary allowance of $2 per month for each year of service. 

Members of the System may elect to participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Plan, (DROP) and defer the 
receipt of benefits. The election may be made only one time and the duration is limited to three years. Once an 
option has been selected, no change is permitted. Upon the effective date of the commencement of participation in 
the DROP Plan, active membership in the regular retirement plan of the System terminates. Average compensation 
and creditable service remain as they existed on the effective date of commencement of participation in the System, 
The monthly retirement benefits, that would have been payable had the person elected to cease employment and 
receive a service retirement allowance, are paid into the Deferred Retirement Option Plan Fund Account. The 
System maintains subaccounts within this account reflecting the credits attributed to each participant in the DROP 
program. Interest credited and payments from the DROP account are made in accordance with Louisiana Revised 
Statutes 11:1152(F)(3). Upon termination of participation in both the DROP program and employment, a 
participant may receive his DROP monies either in a lump sum payment from the account or systematic 
disbursements. The System also provides for deferred benefits for vested members who terminate before being 
eligible for retirement. Once the member reaches the appropriate age for retirement, benefits become payable. 

LRS 11:1147 provides that meml>ers are eligible to retire and receive disability benefits ifthe member has attained 
at least 5 years of creditable service (10 years of creditable service if employed on or after July 1.2006), if the 
member is not eligible for regular retirement and has become totally and permanently disabled. Disability benefits 
are equal to2V2%ofhis average compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service, but not less than 33V3% 
of his average compensation for members employed prior to July I, 2006 and 3% of his average compensation 
multiplied by his years of creditable service for members employed between July I, 2006 and June 30.2010. For 
those employed on or after July i. 2010 disability benefits are equivalent to the regular retirement fonnula without 
reduction by reason of age. Pursuant to LRS 11:1151. survivor benefits of up to 75% of the members salary are 
available for surviving spouses and minor children of members with at least five years of ser\ ice. 
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8- Retirement Systems (contimied) 

Louisiana State Emplovees* Retirement System (LASERS) (contimied) 

The Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS) is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple 
employer defined benefit pension plan to provide retirement, disability, and survivor's benefits to eligible stale 
employees and their beneficiaries as defined in LRS 11;41! -414. The School Board has participants in this plan 
who began service under the LASER plan and later transferred to employment with tlie School Board. The age and 
years of creditable service required in order for a member to receive retirement benefits are established by LRS 
11:441 and vary depending on the member's hire date, employer and job classification. The substantial majority of 
members may retire with lull benefits at any age upon completing 30 years of creditable service and at age 60 upon 
completing 10 years of creditable service. Additionally, members may choose to retire with 20 years of service at 
any age. with an actuarially reduced benefit. The computation of retirement benefits are provided for in LRS 
1 i :444. The b^ic annual retirement benefit for members is equal to a percentage (between 2.5% and 3-5%) of 
average compensation multiplied by die number of years of creditable service. 

The Stare Legislature authorized LASERS to establish a Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP). When a 
member enters DROP, their status changes from active member to retiree even though they continue to work and 
draw their salary for a period of up to three years. The election is irrevocable once j^rticipation begins. During 
DROP participation, accumulated retirement benefits that would have been paid to each retiree are separately 
tracked. For members who entered DROP prior to January 1, 2004, interest at a rate of one-half percent less than 
the System's realized return on its portfolio (not to be less than zero) will be credited to the retiree after 
participation ends. At that time, the member must choose among available alternatives for the distribution of 
benefits that have accumulated In the DROP account. Members who enter DROP on or after January 1,2004, are 
required to participate in LASERS Self-Directed Plan (SDP) which is administered by a third-party provider. The 
SDP allows DROP participants to choose from a menu of investment options for the allocation of their DROP 
balances. Participants may diversify their investments by choosing from an approved list of mutual funds with 
difierent holdings, management styles, and risk factors. Members eligible to retire and who do not choose to 
participate in DROP may elect to receive at the time of retirement an initial benefit option (IBO) in an amount up to 
36 months of benefits, witli an actuarial reduction oftheir future benefits. For members who selected the IBO 
option prior to January 1,2004. such amount may be withdrawn or remain in the IBO account earning interest at a 
rate of one-half percent less than the System's realized return on its portfolio (not to be less than zero). Those 
members who select the IBO on or after January 1,2004, are required to enter the SDP as described above. 

Eligibility requirements and benefit computations for disability benefits are provided for in LRS 11:461. Ail 
members with ten or more years of creditable service or members aged 60 or older regardless of date of hire who 
become disabled may receive a maximum disabili{>' benefit equivalent to the regular retirement formula without 
reduction by reason of age. Hazardous duty personnel who become disabled in the line of duty will receive a 
disabiiily benefit equal (o 75% of final average compensation. 

Provisions for survivor's benefits are provided for in LRS 11:471 -478. Under these statutes, the deceased member 
who was in state service at the time of death must have a minimum of five years of service credit, at least two of 
which were earned immediately prior to death, or who had a minimum of twenty years of service credit regardless 
of when earned in order for a benefit to be paid to a minor or liandicapped child. Benefits are payable to an 
unmarried child until age 18 or age 23 if the child remains a full-time student, the minimum service requirement is 
ten years for a surviving spouse with no minor children, and benefits are to be paid for life to the spouse or 
qualified handicapped child. 
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8. Retirement Systems fcontinued) 

Funding Policy 

Article X, Section 29(E)(2)(a) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns tlie Legislature the authority to 
determine employee contributiotis. Employer contributions are actuarially detennined using statutorily established 
methods on an annual basis and are constitutionally required to cover the employer's portion of the normal cost and 
provide for the amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Entployer contributions are adopted by the 
Legislature annually upon recommendation of the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee (PRSAC). 

Contributions to the plans are required and determined by State statute (which may be amended) and are expressed 
as a percentage of covered payroll. The contribution rates in effect for the year ended June 30,2018, for the School 
Board and covered employees were as follows: 

School Board 
Teachers' Retirement System: 

Regular Plan 
Plan B 

School Employees* Retirement System 

State Employees' Retirement System 

Employees 

26.60% 
26.60% 
27.60% 
37.90% 

8.00% 
5.00% 

7.50% ^8-00% 

7.50%-8.00% 

The contributions made to the Systems for the past three fiscal years* which equaled the required contributions for 
each of these years, were as follows: 

2018 2017 2016 

Teachers' Retirement System 

School Employees' Retirement System 

Slate Employees' Retirement System 

$ 4,030.024 

313,853 
15,716 

3.824.820 

310,780 
13,929 

$ 3,697.321 

325,709 
7.516 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

Tlte following schedule lists the School Board's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability allocated by each 
ofthc pension plans for based on the June 30,2017 measurement dale. Tlie SCIKX)1 Board uses this measurement to 
record its Net Pension Liability and associated amounts as of June 30,2018 in accordance with GASB Statement 
68. The schedule also includes the proportionate share allocation rate used at June 30,2017 along with the change 
compared to the June 30, 2016 rate. Tlie School Board's proportion of the Net Pension Liability was based on a 
projection of the Agency's long-term share of contributiotis to the pension plan relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. 
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8. Retirement Systems (continued) 

Net Prasion 
Liability at Jui^ 30, 

2017 
Rate at June 30, 

2017 

Increase (Decrease) 
to June 30,2016 

Rate 

Teachers' Retirement System 
School Employees' Retirement System 
Slate Employees' Retirement System 

34,789,750 

2,506,639 
141,058 

37,437,447 

0.3394% 

0.3917% 

0.0020% 

0.0324% 
0.0123% 
0.0011% 

The totlowing schedule lists each pension plan's recognized pension expense to the School Board for the year 
ended June 30,2018: 

Pension Expense 

Teachers' Retirement System 

School Employees' Retirement System 

State Employees' Retirement System 

$ 2,941,348 
43,963 

(60,627) 

$ 2.924,684 

At June 30, 2018, the School Board reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resource 
related to pensions trom the following sources: 

Differences bet>^'een expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 

Changes in proportion and dltferences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 
Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

7,864,618 

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources 

s $ (1,204,643) 
419,977 (39,049) 

4.587 (937,757) 

3.080,461 (1,674,772) 

4.359.593 -

$ (3,856,221) 

Summary totals of deferred outtlows of resources and deferred inflows of resources by pension plan: 

leachers' Retirement System 
School Employees' Retirement System (LSERS) 

Slate Employees' Retirement System (LASERS) 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 7,370,860 
423,673 
70,085 

S 7.864.618 

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources 

$ (3,593,130) 
(224,746) 
(38J45) 

$ (3,856,221) 
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8. Retirement Systems (continued) 

The School Board reported a total of $4359,593 as deferred outflow of resources related to pension contributions 
made subsequent to the measurement period of June 30, 2017 which will be recognized as a reduction in Net 
Pension Liabilit>' in the year ended June 30, 2018. The following schedule list the pension contributions made 
subsequent to the measurement period for each pension plan: 

Subsequent 
Contributions 

Teachers' Retirement System 
School Employees' Retirement System (tSERS) 

State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS) 

s 4,030,024 
313,853 

15,716 
s 4,359.593 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will 
be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

LASERS Total 
(11.597) (750,178) 
28,625 662,054 
1,836 60,704 

(2,840) (323,776) 

Year TRSL LSERS 
2018 (594,445) (144.136) 
2019 529,540 103,889 
2020 42346 16,522 
2021 (229,735) (91,201) 

S (252,294) $ (114,926) 16,024 $ (351,196) 
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8. Retirement Systems (continued ) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability for each 
pension plan as of June 30, 2017 are as follows: 

Valuation Data 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

expected Remainin); 
Service Lives 
Investmeat Rate 
of Return 

Inflation Rate 

Mortality 

Term [nation. DisabiUty , 
and Retirement 

Salary Increases 

TRSL 
June 30,2017 
Entry Age Normal 

5 years 
7.70% net of investment 
expenses (decreased from 
7.75% in 2016) 

2.5% per annum 

Mortality ratc.s were projected 
based on the RP-2000 
Monality fable wiih 
projection to 2025 using Scale 
AA, 

Termination, disability, and 
retia'mcnt a.ssumpiK}ns were 
projected based on a five year 
(2008-2012) experience study 
of the System s members 

3.50% - 10.0% varies 
depending on dunuion of 
service 

Cost of Liviittt Adjuvtmenis None 

i>SERS 
June 30.2017 
Entry Age Normal 

3 yea$ 
7.125% per annum 

2 625?A per mtnum 

Mortality bused on the 
RP-2000 Se-x District 
Mortality Table. 
RP-2000 Disabled Lives 
Mortalitv Tabic 

LASERS 

S^ary increases were 
projected based on \hc 2008-
2012 experience siudy 
rsietng from 3 t>75% to 
5.375% 

Note substantively 
automatic l"hc present value 
of fuiure retifcment benefits 
IS based on benefits 
curremly Ircmg paid by the 
s>'siem and includes 
previously granted cost of 
living incrca.sc.-i lire present 
values do not include 
provisions lor poientiui 
future increases not yci 
authorized b> the Board of 
Trustees 

June 30.2017 
Entry A^ Nonmd 

3 years 
7.70% net of investment expenses (decreased frmn 
7 73% in 2016) 

2 75%pcra«num(dccrea.sed from 3 0%inM16). 

Non-disaMed members - Monality rales based on 
the RP-2()00 Combined Healthy Mortality Tidile 
with monaiily improvement p^jected to 2015. 

Disabled members - Mortality rates based on the 
RP-2000 D»abled Retiree Mortaltty T^lc, with no 
projection for mortality improvement. 

Termination. disability. and rctir^nent 
a.ssumptions were projeaol based oaz five-
year (2009-2013) experience smdy of the System's 
immbcrs 

Saiary increases were projected based on a 2009-
2013 experience study of the System's mcndiers. 
The salary mcrca.sc ranges for specific types of 
members ore: 

Member Type Lower 
Range 

Upper 
Range 

Regular 3.8tj% 12.80% 
Judges 2.m 5.305-. 
Corrections 3 40% 14.30% 
Hai^ous Duty 340% 
WikHifc 3.4{Wi 14.30% 
I he present value of future retirement benefits is 
based on benefits currently being pud by the Svisteni 
and includes previously granted cost of iriing 
inm'oses The proiected benefit payments do not 
include provisioas lor fwtential fuUire increases not 
yet suithoriTcd by the Board of Trusiccs as they were 
deemed not (n be sulwtaniivcly nutwnalic 
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8. Retirement Systems (continued) 

The following schedule list the methods used by each of the retirement systems In determining the long term rate of 
return on pension plan investments: 

THSL 
The long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan invcstmtmts was determined 
using a building-block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected luture real rates of 
return {expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expenses and inflation) are 
developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to pnxJucc the long term 
expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return b\ the 
target asset allocation paccntagc and by 
adding expected inflaiitm of 2.5% and an 
adjustment for the cfleci of 
rcbalancing^divcrsification. The rcsulling 
expected long-term rate of return is 8.33% for 
2017. 

LSERS 
The long-term expected rale of return on 
pension plan investments was determined 
using a iriangulation mcdiod which iniegnitcd 
the CAPM pricing mode) (top-down), a 
treasury yield curve approach (bottom-up), 
and an equity building-block model (bottom-
up). Risk return and correlations arc projectcti 
on a forward l(»ktng basis in equilibrium, in 
which best-estimates of expected future real 
rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and 
innation) arc developed for each major asset 
class. ITicse rates arc combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting 
the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by 
adding c.xpccled inOation and an adjustment 
for the effect of rcbalancing'divcrsincntion. 
The resulting long-term arithmetic nominal 
expected return is 8.10%. 

LASERS 
lite long-term expected rate of reUim on 
pension plan investments was determined 
using a building block method in which 
best-estimates ranges of expected future real 
rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense »td 
indation) are developed for each n^or asset 
class. These ranges arc combined to produce 
the long-term expected rate of return by 
weighting the expected future real rates of 
return by the taiget a^et allocation percentage 
and by adding expected inflation of 3.25% and 
an adjustment for the effect of 
rebalancing/diversification. The resulting 
expected long-term rate of return \s 8.69% for 
2017. 
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8. Retirement Systems (continued) 

The foliowing table provides a summary of the best estimates of arithmetic/geometric real rates of return for each 
major asset class included in each of the Retirement Systems target asset allocations as of June 30, 2017: 

Target Allocation Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return 
Asset Cla.ss TRSL 
Cash 
[domestic cqui^' 
Intemalionai equity 
IJS equiiy 
Developed equity 
tm^rging markets cqui^ 
Global Riii rs 
Domestic fixed income 
international fixed mcome 
Core fixed Income 
High yield fixed income 
Emerging markets debt fixed 
income 
Global fixed inccmie 
Alternatives 
Altenmtives — private equity 
Allematives - hedge fund or funds 
Alicmatives - real estate 
Private equity 
Other private equity 
Global a<^ aUocatton 
Real assets - tindicr 
Real assets - oil and gas 
Real assets - infrasmtcture 

total 
n/a • amount not provided by 
Retirement Svstem 

27.00% 
19.00% 

13.00% 
5.50% 

25.50% 
10.00% 

100.0% 

LSliRS 

20.00*/i 
ism 
10.00% 
3.00% 

8.00% 
5.00% 

7.00% 
10.00% 

5.00% 
3.00% 
5.00% 

2.00% 
2.00^-» 
2.00^^ 

100,0"/# 

LASERS 

25.00"/o 
32.00% 

8.00% 
6.00% 

TRSI. 

22.00% 

7.00% 

4.28% 
4.96% 

1.98% 
2.75% 

S.47^4 
3.51% 

100.0% 

LSERS 

6.44% 
7.40% 
9.42% 
5.77% 

2.02% 
4.43% 

4.71% 
1.38% 

10.47% 
3.75% 
5.00% 

5.67% 
10.57% 
6.25% 

LASERS 
(0.24%) 

4.31% 
5.35% 

1.73% 
2.49% 

7^1% 

2.84% 

Z>irc&ifit/ Rate 

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed thai plan member contributions will be 
made at the current contribution rate and thai sponsor contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference 
between actuarially determined contribution rales and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, each of the 
pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The discount rale used to measure 
the total pension liability for TRSL. LSERS and LASERS was 7.70%, 7.125% and 7.70^^o. respectively for the year 
ended June 30. 2017. 
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8. Rctircnieiit Systems (continued) 

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate 

The following table presents the School Board's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability (NFL) using the 
discount rate of each Retirement System as well as what the School Board's proponionaie share oftheNPL would 
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point higher than 
the current rate used by each of the Retirement Systems: 

1.0% Decrease 
TRSL 

Rates 
WFPSB Share of NPL 

LSERS 
Rates 
WFPSB Share of NPL 

LASERS 
Rates 
WFPSB Share of NPL 

6.70% 
44,827,645 

6.125% 
3,436,307 

6.70% 
177,083 

Current Discount Rate 

7.70% 
34,789,750 

7.125% 
2,506.639 

7.70% 
141,058 

1.0% Increase 

8.70% 
26,251,126 

8.125% 
1.708,272 

8.70% 
110,429 

9. Total Other Post-F.mi>lovmcnt Benefits 

Plan Description. The West Feliciana Parish School Board (the School Board) provides certain continuing health 
care and life insurance benefits for its retired employees. The West Feliciana Parish School Board's OPEB plan 
(the OPEB Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the School Board. The School 
Board has the authority to establish and/or amend the obligation of the employer, employees and retirees as 
provided by Louisiana Revised Statute Title 17Sections 1221 through 1224. No assets are accumulated inatrust 
that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75. 

Benefits Provided. Medical benefits arc provided through an insured compreliensivc medical plan and insured life 
insurance programs to employees upon actual retiremeni. Employees are covered by the Teachers' Retirement 
System of Louisiana (TRSL), whose retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: 30 years of 
service at any age; age 55 and 25 years of service; or. age 65 and 20 years of service. 

Basic life insurance of $5,000 and additional life insurance coverage in varying amounts are provided to retirees. 
The employer pays for 50% of the basic coverage and 50% of the additional coverage (maximum of $35,000 
additional coverage). The rates used for basic coverage arc blended for all active and retired combined, while 
unblended rates are used for the additional coverage. Since GASB 74/75 requires the use of "unblended" rates, the 
valuation used a mortality table to determine the "unblended" rates for the basic coverage so as to reproduce the 
composite blended rate overall as the rate structure to calculate the actuarial valuation results for lite insurance. All 
of the assumptions used for the valuation of the medical benefits have been used except for the trend assumption; 
zero trend was used for life insurance. 
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9. Total Other Post-Emplovmcnf Benefits (continued) 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms. At July 1, 2017, the following employes were covered by the benefit 
terms; 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 235 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 
Active employees 173 

408 

Total OPEB Liability 

The School Board's total OPEB liability of $24,385,185 was mei^uredasof jime30,20i8and was determinedly 
an actuarial valuation as of July 1. 2019. 

Actuarial Assumptions and other inputs - The total OPEB liability in the June 30,2018 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement, unless othenvise specified: 

Inflation 2.5% 
Salary increases 4.0%, including inflation 
Discount Rate 3.62%, net of OPEB plan investment e.xpense, including inflation 
Healthcare cost trend rates Flat 5.5% annually 

The discount rate was based on the average of the Fidelity 20 Year General Obligation AA rated municipal bond 
index as of the measurement date. 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Table without projection with 50%/50% unisex blend. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1,2017 valuation were based on the results ofongoing evaluations of the 
assumptions from July 1, 2009 to June 30,2018. 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Balance at June 30, 201 7 $ 24,344.739 
Changes for the year: 

Service Cost 350,004 
Interest at 3.62% 893,950 
Differences between expected and actual experience (708,964) 
Benefit payments and net transfers (1,055,403) 

Net changes (520,413) 

Balance at June 30, 20!8 $ 23,824,326 

The amount due within one year for the total OPEB Liability is estimated to be $1,108,000. 
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9. Total Other Post-Employment Benefits fcontinued) 

Sensitivit>' of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. 1 he following presents the total OPEB 
liabiIit>'ofthe School Board, as well as what the School Board's total OPEB liabilil>'would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is I-percentage-point lower (2.62%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.62%) than the 
current discount rate: 

1.0% Decrease Current Discount 1.0% Increase 
(2.62%) (3.62%) (4.62%) 

Total OPEB liability $ 29,113.326 $ 23,824.326 $ 19.788.008 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trends. The following presents the total 
OPEB liability of the Scliooi Board, as well as what the School Board's total OPEB liability would be If it were 
calculated using healthcare cost trends that are 1-percentage-point losver (4.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher 
(6.5%) than the current healthcare trend rates: 

1.0% Decrease Current Trend 1.0y» Increase 
(4.5%) (5.5%) (6.5%) 

Total OPEB liability $ 19,523,320 $ 23.824.326 $ 29,623,167 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

Per the year ended June 30,2018, the School Board recognized OPEB Expense of $1,179,503. At June 30.2018, 
the Sciiool Board reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from 
the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ $ (644,513) 
Total $ $ (644,513) 

Amounts reported as defined outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 
recogiiized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Years ending June 30; 
2019 $ (64,451) 
2020 (64.451) 
2021 (64,451) 
2022 (64,451) 
2023 (64.451) 

thereafter (322,258) 
$(644,513) 
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10. Changes in Agency Deposits Due Others 

A summary of the changes in agency funds (amounts due others) due to taxing authorities and amounts due others 
for school activity accounts follows: 

School Activity Sales Tax Total 
Balance at June 30.2017 $ 472,630 S 1,774 $ 474,404 
Additions 1,031,342 13,628,885 14,660,227 
Reductions ( 987.7741 ( 13.630.640) ( 14.618.4I4J 
Balance at June 30,2018 

11. State Required Disclosure - Tax Collections Remitted to Other Taxing Authorities 

Act 711 of the 2010 Louisiana Legislative Session amended LRS 24:513 B to provide required note disclosure in 
the financial statements of local governments that collect tax for other taxing jurisdictions. For the year ended 
June 30, 2018 the School Board collected $5,398,985 of sales tax for the West Feliciana Parish Government 
($4,369,026), the Town of St. Francisville ($1,006,548) and the Council on Aging ($23,411). Of this amount, the 
School Board withheld $96,647 for the taxing authorities' share of administrative fees. This resulted in a 
distribution of $5,302,338 of sales tax collections to the West Feliciana Parish Government ($4,289,254). the Town 
of St. FrancisvlHc ($989,673) and the Council on Aging ($23,411) during the year ended June 30,2018. 

12. Risk Management 

The School Board has established the Group Insurance Internal Service Fund to account for the program of 
medical benefits provided by West Feliciana Parish School Board Employee Benefits Plan and Trust and Blue 
Cross Blue Shield of Louisiana, who also serves as the Administrator to employees of (he School Board and theff 
eligible dependents and beneficiaries participating in the plan. Premiums are paid into the internal service fund by 
other funds from employee payroll deductions, retired employees, and employer benefits. These premiums are 
reported as quasi-external interfund transactions. These premiums are then remitted to Blue Cross Blue Shield for 
claims and administration, fhe policy provides for a lifetime maximum liability of $2,000,000 per covered 
participant. 

The School Board is self insured for workers compensation. A liability for a claim is established if information 
indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount is 
reasonable estimable. 

Unpaid claims at July 1, 2017 $ 195,731 
Incurred claims 67,714 
Payments 

(102,988) 
Unpaid claims at June 30. 2018 $ 160.457 
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13. Conrinecncies 

Litigation. The School Board is a defendant in various iawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not 
presently determinable, in the opinion of the School Board's attorney, the resolution of these matters will not have a 
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the government. An accrual of$l 50,000 has been made widitn 
the statement of net position to cover any potential exposure. 

Grant Disallowances. The School Board participates in a number of state and federally assisted gr^t programs. 
The programs are subject to audits under the single audit approach as well as audits conducted b\' the Louisiana and 
U.S. Department of Education. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement by the grantor agency for 
expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grants. 

The School Board leases school buses through a lease arrangement which qualifies as an operating lease. The lease 
payments are to be made on a monthly basis and are scheduled for July 15, 2015 through July 15. 2020. The 
agreement may be terminated for convenience at any time and for any reason, without penalt>', by either party upon 
sixty days written notice to the other party. 

Lease paymenLs made during the year ended June 30, 2018 totaled approximately $289,000. 

15. Receivables 

Receivables as of June 30,2018 for the School Board are as follows: 

General 
Fund 

Non-major 
Governmental 

Funds JsM 
Receivables: 

Due from other governments 

Gross receivables 

$ 83.815 $ 186.609 $ 270.424 

_ 83Ji5 

16. Detailed Restricted Net Position and Fund Balances 

a. Dciail.N ol restricted Net Position as reported in the entity-wide Statement ofNet Position are as follows: 

Governmental 
Activities 

Net Position Restricted for: 
Capital improvements: 

Capital Projects 
Total net position restricted for capital projects 

l otal Restricted Net Position 

253,470 
253,470 

$ 253.470 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

16. Detailed Restricted Net Position and Fund Balances (continued) 

b. Details of nonspcndable, restricted, and unassigned fund balances at year-end are as follows: 

Other 
General Non-Major 

Fund Funds 
Nonspendable: 

School Food S $ 30.116 

Restricted for. 
Capita! projects • 253.470 

Unassigned 7.126.403 (30.1161 

Total fund balances S „ 253,470 

17. Deficit Net Position or Fund Balances 

A deficit net position of $184,046 (Group Insurance Internal Ser^'ice Fund) was incurred as of June 30, 2018, If 
additional revenues are not obtained from other external sources, then the general fund will ultimately absorb this 
deficit. 

18. Disaggregation of Accounts Pavahic and Accrued Llahilities 

Accounts, salaries and other payables as of June 30.2018, were as follows: 

Vendors $ 220J08 
Salaries and benefits 2,146,3 80 
Claims payable 160.457 

Total govenimental activities OJ2L145 

19. Tax Reveaues Abated 

The Louisiana Industrial Ad Valorem Tax Exemption program (Louisiana Administrative Code, Title 13, Chapter 
5) is a state incentive program which abates, up to ten years, local ad valorem taxes on a manufacturer's new 
investment and annual capitalized additions related to the manufacturing site. Applications to exempt qualified 
property for five years are approved by the Board of Commerce and Industry. ITie exemption may be renewed for 
an additional five years. For Ute fiscal year ending June 30. 2018. $1,416,921 in West Feliciana Parish School 
Board ad valorem tax revenues were abated by the state of Louisiana through the Louisiana Industrial Ad Valorem 
Tax Exemption program. 
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20. Appropriations to Charter Scfaoois 

Appropriations to Type 2 Charter Schools during the year ended June 30, 2018 were as follows 

General Fund 
Type 2 Charter Schools 

Apex Col legiate Academy $ 8,165 
Louisiana Virtual Charter Academy 25,720 
University View Academy 25,720 

Grand Total S 59,605 

21. Current Accounting Standards Scheduled to be Implemented 

Following is a summaiy of accounting standards adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) that are scheduled to be implemented in the future that may atTect the School Board's financial report: 

GASH Statement 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations (ARO). This standard establishes criteria for 
determining the timing and pattern of recognition of an ARO liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of 
resources. An ARO is a legally enforceable liability assocmted with the sale, recycling, retirement, abandonment 
or disposal in some other manner of a tangible capital asset permanently removed from service. The standard is 
effective for annual reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. The School Board will include the 
requirements of this standard, as applicable, in its June 30,2019 financial statement. The effect of this standard 
or ite applicability to the School Board are unknown at this time. 

GASB Statement 84, Fiduciary Activities, Tliis standard defines and establishes criteria for identifying and 
reporting fiduciary activities. The focus of the criteria is on (1) whether the School Board controls the assets in a 
fiduciary activity and (2) there are separate identifiable beneficiaries with wliom a fiduciaiy relationsliip exists. 
The standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning afler December 15,20! 8. The School Board 
will include the requirements of this standard, as applicable, in its June 30, 2020 financial statement. The effect 
of this standard or its applicability to the School Board are unknown at this time. 

GASB Statement 87, Leases. This standard will require ail leases to be reported on the statement of net position 
under a single accounting model for both lessors and lessees. The statement will require the recognition of lease 
assets or liabilities for leases previously reported as operating leases. Both operating and capital leases will be 
reported under this single accounting method and reported by lessees as an intangible right to use asset and by 
lessors as a receivable with both reporting a deferred inflow of resources. The standard is effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 20! 9. The School Board will include the requirements ofthis 
standard, as applicable, in its June 30, 2021 financial statement. All of the School Board lease agreements will 
need to be evaluated to determine the impact of implementing this standard; however, the effect of this standard 
or its applicability to the School Board are unknown at this time. 

-53-



WKST FKLICiANA PARISH SCHOOt BOARD 
ST. FRANC ISVILLE. LOUISIANA 

.\!A.jOR FUND DESCRimONS 

GENERAL FUND 

The General Fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with the School Board which are not 
required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund. 

-54-



WKST vt:un.\\\ PARISH sciioot. BOARD 
NT. FRANOSVIl l.K. l.Oi tSlANA 

BimGKT.VRV COMPARISON SCHrPI t.K 
K>R tm: VFAR ENDFD Jt'NK Mi, 2QtK 

RKVENUES 
Locai sourccii: 

Taxes: 

Original Final Actual 

Vanance wi^i 
Finai Buds(» 

Positive 
(Ne^iive) , 

Ad valof^ btxes $ 9,856,950 1 9.856.950 % 9.635.184 $ (221,766) 
Sales and use taxes 7.300.000 7.850.000 8.123.942 273.942 

Rentals. Icj^. and rovaiiies - - 63,925 63.%5 
Earnings on investments 27.000 101.000 115.632 14.632 
Odicr 289.986 326.236 231.748 (94,488) 

SttUe sources: 
Mmimum foundauon program (MFP) 10.000,000 I0J3SS,344 10.459.927 71.581 
Restricted tarants-in-aid 134.969 144.072 122,015 (22.057) 
Other !8Mi3 ISS.413 203.052 14,639 

Federal sources; 
Restricted grants-tn^atd-direct 70,000 70.000 48.308 (21.692) 

TOTAL REVENUES 28.925.015 293)03.733 78,7I«, 

EXPENDm^RES 
Current: 

Instruction: 
Regular education progrtuns 10,910.877 10J18.S90 9.813.286 505.604 
Special cdutaiitm programs 3,106,154 3,021.356 2,836.586 184,770 
Other education programs 2.100.615 2 1.469 2.276,410 75.059 

StttHwn servkcs; 
Pupil support services I.259.I7? 1.262,828 1.230.632 32.196 
Instruction^ stafT services 990.955 1J50.408 U00,557 49,851 
enteral attotinistraiion services 495,914 572,297 820.609 (248.312) 
School athnimslration scr\'iccs 1.900.378 1,980.473 1,981,741 (1.268) 
Business services 554,668 620,099 606,833 13.266 
Plant operation and maintenance 3.028.858 3,611,449 3.567.006 44.443 
Transponjttion 2.057,150 2.089.291 2.059.361 29,930 
Technical supptm and centra services 1.853.001 2.057.633 1.969.454 88,179 

N<m-lnsirucrional services. 
Food service 15.000 15.000 11.129 3,871 
Community scrvioc prt^rams 13.000 13.000 13.000 -

Facilnv ^^quisition and crmstruciicm 10,000 5.000 - 5,000 
Appropriaticms - charter scliools - . 59.605 (59,605) 
Debt scrvkc . . 67.082 (67.082) 

TOTAi, EXPENDiniRES 2S.29S.74.5 29.269.193 28.613^91 655.902 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER 
{UNDER) EXPENDn URES (428.427) (344,178) 390.442 734.620 

01 HER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating iranslers in 185.522 185,522 200.673 15.151 
Operating iranslexs out 006.374) (356.374) f348,066) 8308 

TOTAI. OTHER FIN-ANCfNG SOURCES (USES) f 120.852) (170,8521 (147.39.3) 23.459 

EXCESS OF REVHNUFS AND OTHER SOURCES 
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDI'lliRFlS ANDafHER USE.S (549.279) (515.030) 243,049 758,079 

Fundbaiana-. June 30. 2917 5.769.688 6.8S:054 6.883,354 . 
FUND BAUAN'CE, JUNE 50.2018 S 7.126.403 % 758.079 
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WKST FKLiriANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
ST. KR.\NC:iS\ II LF;. Lot ISIANA 

SCIIt-PrLE OK CHANCKS IN TOTAl OI HKR POST-EMPLOVMILM 
BENEFITS l.iABil.l I \ \M> RKKATKP RATIOS 

\ V.\R F.NDFD Jl NK 30. 2018 

j-'manciai 
staicincni Measurement 

reporting date Paic Scr\icc Cost Intcrcsi 

Diflcrcncc 
between actual 
and expected 
cxpcnence 

Benefit 
Paymenis 

Nclehar^ m 
total OPEB 

iHUnUty 

ToulOPEB 
liability > 
beginning 

Total OPEB 
ti4M>iht> -
ending 

Covered 
payroll 

ToulOPEB 
lisbtht)' as a 

percentage of 
covered 
payToll 

6/30/2018 6/30/2018 $ 350,004 $803,950 $ (708,964) S 1.055.403 $ (520,413) $24,344,759 $23,824^326 S10J42.489 23035% 

NoieitoSclwduk: 

Thic sdMKfule is iniaxlcd to show tnfonnuion for IOy«u». Additionalyaars will be as they become avaiMite. 

There are fx> assets acctonulsted in a trust tlia raem the CTiteru of 4 of GASB 7S fiw^thisOraBf^ 

Benefit Changes 
There were no change of berwAt terms for the year ended June 30, 20) S. 

Changes af.4ssunipttans. 
There wvre no changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30.20! 8, 
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WEST FELIC IANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
ST. ERANCISVILLE, i.OUISlANA 

SCHEDL LE OF SCHOOL BOARD^S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION 
LIABILITY FOK THE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED Jl!NE 30. 2018 (*) 

Pension 
Plan Year 

Employer's 
Proportion of 

the Net Pension 
Liabilit> (Asset) 

Employer's 
Proportkmatc 

Share of the Net 
Pension Liability 

(Asset) 
Employer's 

Covered Payroll 

Employer's 
Proponionatc 

Share of the Net 
Pension Liability 

(Asset) as a 
Percentage of its 
Covered Payroll 

Plan 
Fiduciary 

Net Position 
asa 

Percentage 
of the Total 

Pension 
Liability 

TRSL 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 

0.3394% 
0.3069% 
0.3257% 
0.3287% 

34,789,950 
36.025,625 
35.018.339 
33,594.890 

14,933,126 
14,019.472 
14.047.301 
14.376,425 

232.9716% 
256.%85% 
249.2887% 
233.6804% 

65.60% 
59.90% 
62.50% 
63.70% 

LSERS 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 

0.3917% 
0.3794% 
0.4183% 
0.4705% 

2.506.639 
2.862,227 
2,652,344 
2.727,320 

1,138,350 
1.078,873 
1,134,968 
1,320,472 

220.1993% 
265.0522% 
233.6933% 
206.5413% 

75.03% 
70.09% 
74.49% 
76.18% 

LASERS 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 

00020% 
0.0010% 
0.0025% 
0.0051% 

141,058 
74,678 

171,126 
320,773 

38,907 
20,287 
45.140 
79.703 

362.5517% 
368.1077% 
379.1006% 
402.4604% 

62.50% 
57.70% 
62.70% 
65.00"/o 

Schedule is imended to show information for / 0 years. A ddiiional years will he displayed as they become available 

(*) The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 
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WEST FELiaANA PARISH SOTOOL BOARD 
ST. FRANCISVILLE. LOI ISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CQNTRIBlfTIONS TO THE KETIREMENT SYSTEMS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Pension 
Plan Year 

Contractually 
Required 

Contribution' 

Contributions in 
Relation to 

Contractually 
Required 

Contribution^ 

Contribution 
Deficiency 
(Excess) 

Employer's Covered 
PayrolP 

Contributions 
as a % of 
Covered 
Payroll 

TRSL 

2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 

4,030,024 
3,824.820 
3.697.321 
3,939,399 

4,030,024 
3,824,820 
3,697,321 
3,939399 

15,179,131 
14,933,126 
14,019.472 
14,047,301 

26.5498% 
25.6i30»/i 
26.3728% 

28.0438% 

USERS 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 

313,853 
310,780 
325,709 
374,388 

313,853 
310,780 
325,709 
374,388 

1,137,138 
1,138,350 
1,079.873 
1,134,968 

27.6003% 
27.3009% 
30.1618% 
32.9867% 

LASERS 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 

15,716 

13,929 

7.516 

17,812 

15,716 
13.929 
7,516 

17,812 

41.122 
38,907 
20,287 
48,140 

38.2180% 
35.8008% 
37.0484% 
37.0004% 

Schedule is intended to sho^v infofmation for iO years. Additional years wiit be displayed as they become avaitabie. 

For reference only: 

' Employer contribution rate nmitiplied by employer's covered payroll 

^ Actual employer contributions remitted to retirement systems 

' Employer's covered payroll amtnmt for the fiscal year ended June iOof eachyew 
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VVKST FFLK lANA PARISH S( HOOL BOARD 
ST. FRA.NCfSVILLE. LOIJISIANA 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
FOR THE YEAR KNOEi) JUNE 30, 2018 

Changes of Benefit Terms include: 

Teachers Retirement System of Louisiana 
2016 - Act 93 of the 2016 provides for a 1.5% permanent benefit increase on the first 560,000 of a recipient's benefit for 
eligible members effective 7/1/16 for those retired on or before 6/30/15 who are at least the age of 60. 

Louisiana School Employees Retirement System 
2016 - Act 93 of the 2016 provides for an up to 2.0% COLA on the first 560.000 of a recipient's benefit for eligible members 
effective 7/1/16. 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System 
2016 - Act 93 of the 2016 provides for a 1.5% permanent benefit increase on the first 560,000 of a recipient's benefit for 
eligible members effective 7/1/16 for those retired on or before 6/30/15 who are at least the age of 60. 

2016 - The Harbor Pol ice Retirement System transferred into LASERS in 2016 that resulted in a change in benefit terms. 

Changes of Assumptions 

'1 he ib!lov.-ing discount rate changes were made to the pension plan.s identifted in the following table: 

Dicount Riue: 
Year(*) 
TRSL 

2017 
2016 
2015 

R&tc 

7.70% 
7.75% 
7.75% 

Change 

0.05% 
0,00% 

LSERS 
2017 
2016 
2015 

7.125% 
7.125% 
7.00% 

0.00% 
0.125% 

lASERS 
2017 
2016 
2015 

7.70% 
7.75% 
7.75% 

0.05% 
O-OO-'-o 
0.00% 

(•) ITic amounLs presented have a measurement dale of the previous fiscal year end 
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WEST FELICtANA PARISH SC HOOL BOARD 
ST. ERANCISVILLE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATrON 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE Mh 2018 

Changes of Assumptions (continued) 

The following innation rate changes were made to the pension plans identified ai the foUo\^g table: 
Inflation Rate: 

Ycar(*) Rate Change 
UShRS 

2016 
2015 

2.625% 
ZlSO'yo 

-0.125% 

LASERS 
2017 
2016 

2.750% 
3.000% 

-0.250®>'o 

The following changes to projected salary increases wen; made to the pension plans identified in the foUowing table: 
Salary Increases: 

Range Ycar(*) 
LASERS 

2017 
2016 

2.80% to 14.30% for various member types 
3.00% to 14.50% for various iiKmhcr types 

LSITLS 
2017 
2016 

3.075% to 5.375% 
3.200% to 5.500% 

(•) The amtiunts presented have a measuromcni dale of the previous fiscal year end. 
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VVKST FKLICIANA PARISH SC HOOL BOARD 
ST. FKANCISVIIA.E. LOUISIANA 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMKNTAL FUND DF.SCKIPTIQNS 

School Food Service 

The School Food Serv ice fund includes lunch and breakfast and is used to account for the operations of the 
school food service programs in the parish school system during the regular school term. The basic goals of 
the school food service programs are to serve nutritionally adequate, attractive and moderately priced meals, to 
help children grow socially and emotionally, to extend educational influences to the homes of school children, 
and to provide learning experiences that will improve children's food habits with the ultimate goal of physically 
fit adults. 

Julius Frcyhan 

The Julius Freyhan fund accounts for funding used to restore the Julius Freyhan building as a community 
center and as a museum of early West Feliciana Parish education. 

litiei 

77//e /includes programs primarily in the areas of reading and math. These programs strive to meet die special 
needs of economically and educationally deprived children through federal funding for teachers, aids, 
instructional materials, equipment and parental involvement. 

Homeless 

The purpose of this program is to ensure that all homeless children and youth have equal access to the same 
free, appropriate public education available to other children. 

Special Education • IDEA B 

IDEA B (Individuals with Disabilities Educational Act - Part B) is a federally fiinded program designed to 
assist states in providing free, appropriate education to all handicapped children trom 3 to 21 years of age in 
the least restrictive environment. 

Head Start 

The objectives of the Head Start Program are to provide comprehensive health, educational, nutritional, social 
and other services primarily to economically disadvantaged preschool children so that the children will attain 
overall social competence. Parents also participate in various decision-making processes related to the 
operation of the program. 
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WKST FELICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
ST. FRANCISVtLLE, LOUISIANA 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND DESCRU'TIONS 

Title n 

Title. // is a federally funded program to provide frnancial assistance to improve the skills of teaching and 
instruction in mathematics, science, computer learning, and foreign languages; and increase the access of all 
students to this instruction. 

Capital Projects 

Accounts for various major capital improvements. 

Adult Education 

Adult Education programs offer higher education opportunities to persons who are age 16 or older. 

Vocational Education (Carl Perkins) 

Vocational Education is a federally funded program restricted to expenditures for salaries, supplies, and 
equipment to be used in vocational education programs. 

Cohort 2 

The Cohort 2 program will implement the five strategies outlined in the Early Childhood Care and Education 
Network- Roadmap to 2015. The ultimate goal of the Early Childhood and Education Network is to prepare 
children for Kindergarten. 

Medicaid 

This fund accounts for the activity related to the providing of health care services to Medicaid eligible children. 

Education Excellence 

This program, established under the Millennium Trust, provides for the disposition of proceeds from the 
tobacco settlement. These funds arc restricted to expenditures for pre-kindcrgarten through twelfth grade 
instructional enhancements for students, including early childhood education programs focused on enhancing 
the preparation of at-risk children forschtK)!; remedial instruction and assistance lochildren who fail to achieve 
the required scores on any tests, passage of which is required pursuant to state law or rule for advancement to a 
succeeding grade. 

80 Programs 

These funds account for grants provided by the State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education to create 
programs which enhance or build upon regular classroom instruction. 
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WKST FKLIC IANA TAKISH SCHOOL BOAKD 
ST. FRANClSVILtr, LOL'IStANA 

NON-MAJOR C;OVERNMENTAL FUND DESCRIPTIONS 

Debt Service 

The Debt Service fund is used to pay the 2012 bond issue. The bonds were issued by the School Board for 
the purpose of acquiring land, buildings, and furnishings. 

TANF 

The TANF fund accounts for a federal grant, the goal of which is to provide time-limited assistance to needy 
families with children. 

Title IV SSAE 

The program intends to Improve student academic achievement by Increasing the capacity of local education 
agencies to provide all students with access to a well-rounded education; improve school conditions for student 
learning; and improve the use of technology to improve the academic and digital literacy of all students. 

Extended Day - Bains 

The program is an after-school program for students whose parents work beyond school hours. The prc^jam 
focuses on instruction to improve academic achievement of students and assists in closing the achievement 
gap-
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WUST FKIJ( i \>\ PARISH S( HOOi. BOARD 
Sr.KRA\< ISVil J>:.L()t lSI VNA 

NON-MAJOR (;OM:RNMtM AL FUNDS-
rOMBIMNO BALANf F. SIIKKT 

mLMjm 

A«»ct« 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 
Due fnxn other funds 
Inventoo' 

Total assets 

School 
Food 

Service 

S 43,791 
3.673 
7.324 

30,116 

Julius 
Freyhan 

$ 253,470 

Title 

S 4.210 
70.392 

S 84.904 % 253.470 $ 74.602 

liomeless 
Special 

Eduction 

65.600 

S 65.600 

Liabliities and Fund Baiaaces 

l.iid)ilities. 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Unevned rcvcoues 
Due to other hinds 

Total li^Hies 

$ 71,445 S 
13.459 

84.904 

S 20.156 S 

54.446 

74,602 

I8J40 

47.260 

65.600 

Fund balances. 
Nonspcndabk 
Spendable: 

Restricted 
Una!»jgTied (deficit) 

Total fund balances 

30.116 

(30,116) 
253.470 

253.470 

Total liabilities and 
fund balances S 84.904 S 253.470 $ 74.602 $ S 65.600 

(continued) 
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Head Siarl Title! I 
Capita! 
Pmiecis 

Adult 
[':ducati(m 

S 278 

86.047 

$ 2 S 
17.45! 

S 86J25 $ 17.453 ^ 

S 86.325 

86J25 

7J37 

9,716 

17.453 

S 17,453 

(conOnued) 
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ST.FR.\NaSVIl.l.K.l.<)nsUN\ 

NONAIAJOR (;(>\ 1RNMKM Al. H NDS-
rOMBIMNf; BAI ANi KSHEKT 

30.5018 

Carl 
Perkins Cohort 2 Medicaid 

Bducation 
Excellence SG 

A»rti 

Cash and cash eqinvaknts 
Receivables 
Due from other funds 
InvcntcMy 

$ 
18.512 

% 
2,932 

S $ 

• 

$ 

• 

Total assets $ 18.512 S 2.932 s $ $ 

Uabiliries and Fund Balances 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accnted expenses 
Unearned revenues 
l>uc to other funds 

$ 

18.512 

S 

2.932 

$ $ $ 

• 

Total Ii;d>ilitics 18.512 2.932 * 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspcndabk 
Spendable: 

Restricted 
Unassigncd (dcficjl) 

• - - - -

l otal fund balances • m 

Total liahilitics and 
fund balances $ 18,512 s 2.932 % $ » -

(continiied) 
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Debt * Title IV bxtcmkd 
Service TANF SSAb Day • Bains 1'oUi 

$ . $ - $ - $ MK751 
8.049 > - 186.609 

93.371 

S 8.049 S ' S • S 611.847 

$ - $ • S 204.003 
13.459 

8.049 ^ 140.915 

8.049 ^ 338J77 

3an6 

253,470 
(30.116) 

253.470 

$ 8.049 $ S $ 611.847 

(cuticluJcO) 
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WFSl FKl.K I VN X PARISH S< IMX>1 
KT ISVII I f i Ol LM\\\ 

NOVMAJOH {;0\TR\\ff \T \l H APS 
M IS. IXKtMHTt kf S A\D VHXMiVS IN FIAT> BAlJJKX 

K>R niK V 

Local 99itfccs 
Foodsaks 
Ad vatorcm taxes 
Hamings on mvcsiroenu 
Olhcr 

Surtc wurces 
Unrestncted gnmts-^n-aid 
Restricted grants-m-aid 
ahrr 

Fe^ral sources 
Restricted grants-in-aid - dacci 
Rcsiricied grants-in-aid - subgraots 

Commodiitcii - United Swcs 
Oepamnent of Agriculture 

Toul revenues 

Eiaeodifret 
Instruction 

Regular education prograws 
Special education prograoa 
Other education prx>grvm 

Suppcai scrsicts 
Pupii support services 
htslructxmd staff services 
General adnuntstratKin 
School admiru&tration 
Business and central services 
Hant operation and mauitciwice 
Transponaiiton 

Non-lnstrucikmal Services 
School food service 
Comnumity service programs 

Facility ac(|uisitton and construction 
DHHSCTMCC 

Principal rctiavncnl 
Ifltcreta and bank chaiges 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditunrs 

Other financing aowucsluaes) 
Operating transfers out 
Operating uamrers m 

ToUtl other sources (uses) 

Ivxcesi (deficiency) of revenues and 
other sources over expcnditwei 
and other uses 

Fund balances ai hegmnmg of year 

Fiuid haluAcc at end of >rar 

School 
Food Julius 

Service Ffcyhao Title I Homeless (idiKatian 

40J8) $ 

- 130 "• * 

83.961 • - - -

- - - - • 
. _ . . . 

948965 • 453.067 330 554.583 

85-444 , . . . 
1.158.760 150 453.067 320 5S4.S83 

42.508 
. , 4,067 . 357J36 
- - 211.886 320 4.764 

. * , 2,614 
• • 117,187 133.565 

. . . 
# - 39.698 -

. . -
- - 7,n4 

1.524,164 
• - -

1.324.164 . 4I5J46 320 505.453 

(165.404) 130 57.721 49.130 

(40.377) (49.130) 

r«
. •A
" 

V
. . 2.656 -

155.715 (37.721) . (49,130) 

(9.6911 150 

9691 :s>.wo . . . 

S 255,470 $ . $ S . 

(Continued I 
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Capital Aduli 
Head Start Title H Protflcts Education 

923.7t7 
91.679 

922.787 91.679 

2J.404 

23.404 

63.591 

653.631 

220.906 19.921 

58.473 
8.407 

23.484 

941.417 83.526 23.^ 

19.5.632) (8.153) 
114.415 303 

18.783 (8-153) 303 

24.344 

533 

2^877. 

(18.630) 8.153 (23.484) U.473) 

,473 

153 . (23.181) 

(153) • 23.181 

8 : t S 

(Continued) 
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Wt-yr fPMCUNA f AHlSW H 
ST. KRANf ISVil J K. I OMSIANA 

%OV%I.U<mOOVKRNMKN l Al.n NI>N 

tm rMt: yf.\H rNPtvP H M-

(dcftcMicy»of re^TDun «nd 
other "woa'cv over eYpendttaro 
and uies 

Fund batanccs at hcft'nning of vear (as restated) 

Fund balarwc at end »>f >taf S 

Carl l-.dtKaiion 
Paiins Cohon2 Medicaid 80 

RevraMCi 
Local boufcea 

Food sales % S S - % • S 
Ad valorem ta.xcs . . , 
Eiamingson tnveainonts . . . • 
Other - • 124,097 * 

State sources 
Unrestficted grantSHrv«ri - - - . -
Restricied graMs-oMid . • . 39085 4J63 
Other . 

Federal sources 
Restricted ]tranis-m-aid • direct . - . . . 
Restricted grants-in-aid • si^grants 3.942 . . . 

Commndtties - United States 
Depwtiwmof A«riciilturr . . • . .. 

Total revenues 23.846 3.942 124.097 3^,2is '•"TET 
Eioeadilnrei 

IftStfuction 
Rcftular education programs - . . 13310 . 
SpecutI education prDgraws . 175 71.632 . . 
Other eduction progRHas 21,089 - 44S 9,774 . 

Si^tport serv ices 
Pupil su{HM)fi services - . 52,017 . . 
Instructionai stafl! scn-ms 2.7S7 3,767 I630I 7379 
General administration . . . 
School admmislration . . . . 
Business and ccnixal services . . . 
Plant uperation and matnicftance . . 
Transportation . * . 3.709 

Non-lnstructional Services 
Schixrl loud service • . * . . 

Community scrvicr programs . • * , . 
Facility acttuisition and corutnictson . _ . . 
Debt Serv ice 

Principal rvtirenicnt . . . . 
Imercfit and bank charges . . . .. 

Total cxpendiuaes 23.846 3.942 124.097 39285 10.988 

Hxccss (defktcncY) of revenues 
over expendrturca - . - (6.1251 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Opo^ting transfers out . . . 
OpmiUing iramfers in . . . . ft. 125 

Total other sources (uses) • . . ft,l25 

K'ontmucdi 
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DeM TjUe IV Hxiencled 
Servtce TM4F SSAt: Duv-Hains Tocal 

s • S s t 404S3 
296 . . .. 296 

S . - . 138 
- - - 53.493 177,590 

. . . , 83.968 
. . 44.148 

- * - - 23,404 

, 922.787 
- 73Jt5 9,7)1 - 2,159.448 

, . . 85.444 
304 73J1$ 9.7)1 53.493 3.537.606 

119.416 
. - - 433.110 

66.793 8,874 52423 1.054 746 

. , 54,631 
- - 522.123 

] 1.177 1.177 
- - 39.698 

58.473 
- - 19,390 

- - 1.324.164 

-

-

21.484 

66.793 8.874 5iS30 3.649.912 

J<M 6J22 857 O) (112.306) 

(3<H> (6.523) (857i 7 (200.968) 
. . . . 280.685 

(304) (857) 7 79.717 

(12.589) 

$ . 286.059 

J $ . 255.470 

<toftcluiicd> 
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WKST FKLK IANA PAKISH SCHOOL BOARD 
ST. FKANCISVItLE, LOiilSIANA 

SCHKDlll.K OF BOARD MEMBERS' COMPENSATION 

FOR THK YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Kevin Beauchamp, President S 4,800 
Sara Wilson-Rogers 4,200 
Amanda McKinney 4,200 
Nancy Tycer 4.200 
Milton Coats 4,200 
Kelly O'Brien 4,200 
Helen W. WhitHeld 4,200 

Total $ 30.000 
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WKST FEIJC lANA PARISH SC HOOL BOARD 
ST. FRANCISVILLK. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION. BKNEFITS. AND OTHER PAVMFNTS 
TO THE SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR THE VEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Superintendent Name: Mollis C. Milton 

Salary, including incentive 
Benefits^insurance 
Benefits-life insurance 
Benefits-retirement 
Benefits-medicare 
Operational allowance 
Registration fees 

s 
4.942 

55 
39,668 
2361 
9.600 
6.910 

S 221.536 
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Postlelhwaite & NetterviUe 4 f^ctf^Sionol Ai:co»»h^; Cc>;(xvo<ian 

INBEPENDENT AUOTTORS^ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FTNANCTAL 
REPORTtNG AND ON COMPLIANCE ANl) OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOyiiRNMENTAU/yirmG STANDARDS 

The Members of the West Feliciana 
Parish School Board 

St. Francisville, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of West Feliciana Parish School Board (the School 
Board), as of and for the year ended June 30,2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the School Board's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 19, 2018. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, wc considered the School Board's interna! 
control over fmancial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School Board's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School Board's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's fmancial 
statements wit! not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have 
not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School Board's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit perfonned In accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the School Board's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
ccmimunication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
December 19,2018 
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Postlethwaite & NellerviUe /. Ac.:o{mVng Corporation 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS^ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROCRAiVf AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED 

BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

The Members of the West Feliciana 
Parish School Board 

St. Francisville, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited West Feliciana Parish School Board's (the School Board) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of the School Board's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. The School 
Board's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Managements Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and the terms 
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its major federal programs. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the School Board's major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our 
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administratrve Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and 
perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the School Boiu'd's compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the School Board's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the School Board complied, in all material respects, with the types ofcompliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material elTect on each of its major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30,2018. 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit 
of compliance, we considered the School Board's internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the School Board's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School Board's interna! control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees^ in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described In the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified. 

TT)e purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Baton Rouge. Louisiana 
December 19,2018 
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WKST FtrLK IAN A PARISH S( IIOOL BOARD 
ST. KRANC ISMI.LK. LOl iSrvNA 

s( OF KXPKNorn RKS OF R:OF.RVI. AWARDS 
FOR TUF: V K.VK K.NPKD Jt NH 30> 2018 

Feder^ Grmtof/ 
PasvThrough Grwioi:/ 

Program Name 

GiaHor 
Projeci 
Number 

CFDA 
Nwnber 

Expendmircs 
20IS 

jrjviT^p STATES DgPARXM^NT Of AMCVI Tl KR 
CHILD NUTRITION CLUSTER 

Passed throu^ Louisiana Department ol 
Agnculum: and Foresuy • Food Dtsfnbtgkm N/A 

Passed through lx»uis>aria Department of Educalkm: 
National School Breakfast Piogiam LDE/105-63 
Natimal School Lunch Program LDE/103-63 
Summer Food Swvicc Program for Children LDE' 105-63 

TOTAL CHILD NUTRITION CLUSTER 

Child and Adult Care Food Prowftm - Dinner Feeding 05-SFS-I03 
TOTAL IMTEDSrATKS DEPARTMKNT OF AOKICl LTrRE 

I05SS $ 

10.553 
10,555 
10559 

10558 

85.444 

202.166 
704,661 

3,876 
996.147 

38.262 
1.034.409 

ism\^ sT\Trs <)y FPLCAI io> 
SPECIAI. EDIKTATION (IDEA) CLUSTER 

Special FducaiiOfi (inmis u> States 
Passed through Louisiana !3epartmcnt of Edm'ation 

Individuals with Disabilities Hduciutona) Act - Pari B 
Total Special Rducattun Grams to States 

Special Educaikm Preschool Grants 
IDEA B - Preschool 
Total Special Education • Preschool Grams 

TOTAL SPECIAI. EDUCATION CLUSI"ER (IDEA) 

Passed through Louisiana Dcpanmcm of Eiducalkm. 
Title I • GranLs to l.ocal Educational Agencies 
Homeless 
Carl Perkins Grant 
Title IV' ESFX as amended b>- RSSA 
Tnle II - PSfft A. Teacher & Principal Tfaming & Reimiiting 

TOT.\L IMTED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

28-18-81-63 

28.I8-P1-6J 

28-18-T1-63 
28-17-111^3 
28-18-02-63 
28-18-71-63 
28-l8-5(k63 

84 027A 

84 173A 

840I0A 
84 196A 
84 (MSA 
84 424A 
84 367A 

542.495 
542.495 

12.088 
12.088 

554.583 

453^7 
320 

23.846 
9.731 

91,679 
1.133026 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND lilMAN SERVICES 
A(hnmistration for Children. Youth. ̂  Faniihcs • Head Start • (Direct Funding) 
CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT RiND (CCDF) CI LISTER 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Education 
Child Care and Development Block Grant - Early Childhood Nctvwwk Pilots 

TOTAL CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT FUND (CCDF) CLUSTER 
TL"MP(3RARY ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY KAMll ll:S CLUSTER 

'Icmporary AMistance for Needy Families ITANF) 
TOTAL TEMPORARY ASSISTANCi: TO NEIiDV FAMILIES CI.USIT.R 

TOTAL UNri FD STA PES DEPARTMENT OK HEAI.TII AJND HUMAN SERVICES 

06CH101374)3-01 

2H-I7.CXV63 

93-600 

93575 3.942 

28-18-364)3 93.558B $ 73.315 

922.787 

3.942 

73.315 
1.000,044 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE 
ROTC - Navy Junior Reserve OfTkcrs IraininE Prognim - (Direct Funding) WF-lOI-63 12XXX 48.306 

Tmal Expenditiffes of Federal Awards S_^^5^^l5j9S^ 
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WEST FELICIANA FARrSH SCHOOL BOARD 
ST. FRANCISVILLE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2018 

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATtON 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of West 
Feliciana Parish School Board and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Tlie informaticai 
in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations 
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented 
in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. 

NOTE B - FOOD DISTRIBUTION 

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the schedule at the fair market value of the commodities received and 
disbursed. At June 30,2018, the organization had food commodities totaling $13,887 in inventory. The value 
of commodities received and used during the period ended June 30,2018 totaled S85,444. 

NOTE C - PE MINIMUS COST RATE 

During the year ended June 30,2018, the West Feliciana Parish School Board did not elect to use the 10% de 
minimus cost rate as covered in §200.414 of the Uniform Guidance. 

NOTE D - AMOUNTS PASSED THROUGH TO SUBRECIPIENTS 

During the year ended June 30.2018, the West Feliciana Parish School Board did not pass through any federal 
funding to subrecipients. 

NOTE E- RECONCILIATION TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Reconciliation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) to the Financial Statements 

Federal Restricted Grants-m-aid-direct $ 971,095 
Federal Restricted Grants-in-aid-subgrants 2,159,448 
Commodities-United States Department of Agriculture 85.444 

Total Federal Expenditures - SEFA S . _3,2j §^9S7 
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WEST FELICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
ST. FRANCISVILLE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30^2018 

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS^ RESULTS 

financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified 

• Material weakness(es) identified? 
• Significant deficiencies identified that are 

not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance materia) to financial 
statements noted? 

Federal A wards 

Internal control over major programs; 

• Material weakness(es) identified? 
• Significant deficiencies identified that are 

not considered to be material weaknesses? 

yes 

yes 

yes 

yes 

yes 

K no 

jc none reported 

Type of auditors* report issued on compliance for major programs; Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 
§200.516(a)? 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Numbers 
10.553, 10.555, 10.559 
93.600 

yes 

no 

no 

_x none reported 

no 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
Child Nutrition Cluster 
f-lead Start 

The threshold for distinguishing types A & B programs was program expenditures exceeding 
$750,000. 
The West Feliciana Parish School Board did not qualify as a low-risk auditec. 
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WEST FELICIANA PARISH SCffOOK BOARD 
ST. FRANC'ISVtELE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

B. Findings - Financial Statement .^udit 

None. 

C. Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Programs 

None. 
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WEST FELICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
ST. FRANClSVILtE. LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

B. Findings - Financial Statement AutlH 

None. 

C. Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Programs 

2Q17-001 Matching 

93.600 Head Start il^06CH10137-02-00 

Criteria: 

Condition: 

Cause: 

Effect: 

Questioned Costs: 

Universe/ 
Population Size: 

Sample Size: 

Recommendation: 

Repeat Finding: 

The School Board is required to contribute at minimum 20 percent of coste 
of the program through cash or in-kind contributions, unless a lesser amount 
has been approved. 

The School Board met the 20 percent match for the program. However, the 
documentation in support of the match should be significantly improved. 

The School Board does not have official written policies in place requiring 
certain documentation to support the program's matching requirement 

The controls in place over the review and preparation of the Head Start 
program's matching documentation are lacking. 

None, 

Not applicable 

Not applicable 

The School Board should develop written policies and procedures for the 
preparation and review of documentation in support of the Head Start 
matching requirement 

Yes. 

Current status: 

The School Board concurs and will develop written policies and procedures 
for review and documentation in support of the Head Start matching 
requirement. 

The above corrective action plan has been implemented as described above. 
Thus, (he finding Ls considered resolved. 
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WEST FELICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
ST. FRANCISVILKE. LOl ISIANA 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

C, Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Programs fcontimicd) 

2017-002 Special Tests and Provisions 

93.600 Head Start #06CH10137-02-00 

Criteria: 

Condition: 

Cause: 

Effect: 

Questioned Costs: 

Universe/ 
Population Size: 

Sample Size: 

Recommendation: 

Repeat Finding: 

View of Responsible Official: 

Cvrrent status: 

The School Board's Mead Slan program is required by program compliance 
requirements to share nioniliiy Tmanciai inrormation with the governing body 
and policy council. 

The School Board does not provide monthly Hnancial information to the 
School Board members related to its Head Start Program. 

The School Board provides financial information including the Head Start 
Program to School Board members quarterly. 

The School Board is not in compliance with Head Start program compliance 
requirements. 

None. 

Not applicable 

Not applicable 

The School Board should provide Head Start Program financial information 
to the School Board members on a monthly basis. 

No. 

Tlie School Board concurs and will implement the recommendation above in 
the 2017-2018 fiscal period. 

The above corrective action plan has been implemented as described above. 
Thus, the finding is considered resolved. 
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WEST FELICiANA PARIStI SCHOOL HOARD 
ST. FRANCTSVILLE. LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

C. Findings and Questioned C'osis - Major Federal Award Programs (continued) 

2017-003 Internal Controls over Reporting and Special Tests and Provisions 

10.553,10.555. 10.559 Child Nutrition Cluster #0LDE/lQ3-63 

Criteria: A strong control environment for federal programs provides written policies 
that establish responsibility and provide the procedures for periodic 
monitoring, verification, and reporting of program progress 
accomplishments. Tlie School Board should have written procedures in 
place to ensure that special provisions related to federal programs are 
monitored routinely to ensure compliance with the relevant requirements. 

Condition: 

Cause: 

Effect: 

Questioned Costs: 

Universe/ 
Ponulation Size: 

Sample Size: 

Recommendation: 

Repeat Finding: 

View ofResponsihlc Official 

Current sfaiits. 

The School Board does not have written evidence to support the review of 
prepared and submitted Claim Reimbursement Reports and the Schcx)! Food 
Authority (SFA) Verification Collection Report. 

The School Board does not have written policies and procedure that ensure 
that the reports are reviewed and approved before submission. 

Tlie internal controls related to reporting and special test and provisions 
related to the federal program are lacking. 

None. 

There was a population of 40 for the Claim Reimbursement Reports and I 
for the SFA Verification Collection Report 

There was a sample size of 16 for the Claim Reimbursement Reports and 1 
for the SFA Verification Collection Report. 

The School Board should implement policies and procedures that establish 
for the review and approval of the Claim Reimbursement Reports and the 
SFA Verification Collection Report. 

No. 

The School Board concurs and will implement the recommendation above in 
the 2017-2018 fiscal period. 

The above corrective action plan has been implemented as described abi^ve. 
Thus, the finding is considered resolved. 
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VV KSr FELICI ANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
ST. FRANCISVILLE, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

C. Findings and Questioned Costs - Major PcUeral Award Programs (continued) 

2017-004 Oocumentation of Susiwnsion and Debarment 

10.553,10.555. ifl.559Child Nutrition Cluster #0LOE/l03-63 

Criteria: 

Condition: 

Cause: 

Effect: 

Questioned Costs: 

Universe/ 
PoDuiation Size: 

Sample Size: 

Recotnmendation: 

Non-Federal entities are prohibited from contracting with or making sub-
awards under covered transactions to parlies that are suspended or debarred 
or whose principals are suspended or debarred. Covered transactions include 
procurement contracts for goods or services equal to or in excess of 
$25,000. When a non-federal entity' enters into acovered trajisaction with an 
entity, the non-federal entity must verily' that the entity is not suspended or 
debarred or otherwise excluded from doing business with the federal 
government This verification may be accomplished by checking the System 
for Award Management (SAM) for exclusions, collecting a certification from 
the entity, or adding a clause or condition to the covered transaction with that 
entity. 

During the performance of our audit procedures, we noted that the School 
Board did not maintain documentation to supports its annual review of the 
suspension and debarment of vendors. 

Management has underlying controls that they believe to be sufficient to 
ensure all vendors are not debarred; however, these searches must be 
documented annually for all vendors. 

The School Board could be using a vendor that was previously suspended or 
debarred which would be non-compliant with Federal award terms. 

None. 

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Tlie School Board should perform a search for all vendors annually then 
export and/or prim the results of its search of SAM system and maintain this 
documenlation in each file of a vendor which meets the applicable criteria. 

No. 
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WEST FELICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
ST. FRANCiSVILLE. LOUISIANA 

SUMIVf ARY vSCHEDlJLE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

C. Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Pro^i-ams (continued) 

2017-004 Documentation of Suspension and Debarment (continued) 

10.553,10.555.10.559 Child Nutrition Cluster #0LDE/103-63 (continued) 

yiew of Responsible Official: 
The School Board will implement this review and documentation of such 
beginning with the 2017-2018 fiscal period. 

Current status: The above corrective action plan has been implemented as described above. 
Thus, (he finding is considered resolved. 
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Independent Accountants^ Report 
On Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

To the Members of the 
West Feliciana Parish School Board, 
and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor 

We have performed the procedures ermmerated below, which were agreed to by the West Feliciana 
Parish School Board, the Louisiana Department of Education, and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (the 
specified parties), on the performance and statistical data accompanying the annual financial statements 
of the West Feliciana Parish School Board for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 in order to determine 
whether the specified schedules are free of obvious errors and omissions as provided by the Board of 
Elementary and Secondary Education (BESE) Bulletin, in compliance with Louisiana Revised Statute 
24:514 L Management of the West Feliciana Parish School Board is responsible for its performance and 
statistical data. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified parties. 
Consequently, wc make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures enumerated below 
either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

General Fund Instructional and Support Exnemiitures and Certain Local Revenue Sources 
(Schedule /; 

L We selected a sample of 25 transactions, reviewed supporting documentation, and observed that 
the sampled expenditures/revenues are classified correctly and are reported in the proper 
amounts among the following amounts reported on the schedule: 

• Total General Fund Instructional Expenditures 

• Total General Fund Equipment Expenditures 

• Total Local Taxation Revenue 

• Total l.ocal Earnings on Investment in Real Property 

• Total Slate Revenue in Lieu of Taxes 

• Nonpublic Textbook Revenue 

• Nonpublic Transportation Revenue 

No differences noted 
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Page 2 of 3 

Chiss Size Characteristics (Schedule 2) 

2. We obtained a list of classes by school, schw)l type, and class size as reported on the schedule. We 
then traced a sample of 10 classes to the October I roll books for those classes and observed that 
the class was properly classified on the schedule. 

Wo differences noted. 

Experience of Public Sc/woi Staff (NO SCHEDULE) 

3. We obtained October l** PEP data submitted to the Department of Education (or equivalent listing 
prepared by management), including full-time teachers, principals, and assistant principals by 
classification, as well as their level of education and obtained managements representation that the 
data/listing was complete. We then selected a sample of 25 individuals, traced to each individuafs 
personnel file and obseived that each individual's education level was properly classified on the PEP 
data (or equivalent listing prepared by management). 

No differences noted. 

Experience of Public Princiva/s, Assistnnt Principals^ and Ful-time Classroom Teachers (NO 
SCHEDULE) 

4. We obtained October PEP data submitted to the Department of Education (or equivalent listing 
prepared by management), of full-time teachers, principals, and assistant principals by classification 
and obtained management's representation that the data/listing was complete. We traced the same 
sample used in procedure 3 to the individual's personnel file and observed that each individual's 
experience was properly classified on the PEP data (or equivalent listing prepared by management). 

No differences noted. 

Public School Staff Data: Avcraee Salaries (NO SCHEDULE) 

5. We obtained June 30'*' PEP data submitted to the Department of Education (or equivalent listing 
provided by management) of all classroom teachers, including base salary, extra compensation, and 
ROTC or rehired retiree status, as well as full-time equivalents, and obtained management's 
representation that the data/listing was complete. We then selected a sample of 25 individuals, 
traced to each individuaPs personnel Hie, and observed that each individual's salary, extra 
compensation, and full-time equivalents were properly included on the PEP data (or equivalent 
listing prepared by management). 

No differences noted. 
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Page 3 of 3 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was performed in accordance with attestation standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the standards applicable to 
attestation engagements contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the United States 
Comptroller General. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the 
objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on the performance 
and statistical data. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed 
additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to 
you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on the performance and 
statistical data accompanying the annual financial statements of the West Feliciana Parish School Board 
as required by Louisiana Revised Statue 24:514.1, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on conn"ol or compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under 
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a 
public document. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
December 19, 2018 
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WEST FELICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

ST FRANClSVtLLE, LOUISIANA 

Schedules Required by State Law (R.S> 24:514 - Performance Measurement Data) 

As of and Tor the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 1 - Geueral Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures and Certain Local Revenue 
Sources 

This schedule includes general fund instructional and equipment expenditures. It also contains local 
taxation revenue, earnings on investments, revenue in lieu of taxes, and nonpublic textbook and 
transportation revenue. This data is used either in the Minimum Foundation Program (MFP) formula or 
is presented annually in the MFP 70% Expenditure Requirement Report. 

Schedule 2 (Formerly Schedule 6) Class Size Characteristics 

This schedule includes the percent and number of classes with student enrollment in the 
following ranges: 1-20, 21-26, 27-33, and 34+ students. 
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PERFORMANCE MKASIIRKMKNT DATA 



WMt Fsficiana Pariah School Board 
General Fund Inttruchonai and Support Expenditures 
and Certain Local Revenue Sources 
For the Year Ended June 30. 2018 

Schedule 1 
ColumnA Cohimn B 

GM9f9l Fund >n«tructonai ExpendrturM 
Teacher and StudaM Intaractxm/telMbM 
CUsaroom Teecher Saiaota S9.003.129 
Other insmjcoonal Staff Acttvities 1.13332? 
inatrucbonel Staff Employee B«neht» 39M.9e3 
Purchased ProtaaaHXiai and Technical S«viae« 152.196 
inseuctional Mateniris and 407.626 
Insuwctional Equtpmtnt 

Total Teecher and Student imeraettonActtveiea ——— ^^4^9^ 54, 

Other Inilructional Activtbet 427.S20 

Piffal Support AcHvAea 1.282.M7 
Lets Eqytpment for Pup4 Support Acbwoes 

Net Support Ace«6e$ 1.262.647 

IntlructiQnal Staff ServiOM 1,319.965 
Lett Equipmem for inetrucbenai Aaff Services 

Net instructional Staff ServicM —— 1.319.985 

School AdminMrstion Services 1 J62.916 
Lass Equipment for School Aommiaoeeon Services 

Net SchodAdmntstraeon Services —. 1.982.919 

Total General Fund IrnerucaoriN Expenditures i£i2l£L 

Total General Fund Eouipment Expendrturea $ 

Local Taxation Revenue 
Constitutional Ad VNorem Taxee $ 1.321,492 
Renew*bio Ad Veldem Tax 6.060,041 
DaM Service Ad Valorwn Tax 296 
Up to 1% of CoNechonsiiy Vie Sheriff on Taxee Other Vien School Taxes 217,651 
Sales and Use Taxes 6.123,942 

Total Locd Taxation Revenue —$17,759,422 

Local Earninos on Invastment in Real Property 
Eaminfls from 16th Section Property $ 
Earnings from Ctther Real Property 

Total Local Eamsios on Investment m Real Property —. 

Stete Revenue m Lieu of Taxes 
Revenue Sh«ing • Constitutional Tax $ se.see 
Revenue - Other Taxes 

Revenue Shenng • Excess Portion 
Omer Revenue m Ueu at Taxes 

Total State Revenues Lieu or Taxes • g 54.886 

NonpuMc TexdMok Revenue $ 

Nonpubkc Transportatxm Revenue 

Total State Revenue for Non-fxditic Education —— 
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West Feliciana Parish School Board 
Class Size Characteristics 
As of October 1. 2017 

Schedule 2; Class Size Characteristics 
Category Class Size Range 

1-20 21-26 27-33 34+ 
Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number 

Elementary 23.6% 49 74.5% 155 1.9% 4 0.0% 0 
Elementary Activity Classes 7.4% 2 85.2% 23 7.4% 2 0.0% 0 
Middle /Jr. Hlqh 61,8% 115 37.1% 69 1.1% 2 0.0% 0 
Middle /Jr. High Activitv Classes 70.3% 26 24.3% 9 5.4% 2 0.0% 0 
High 74.2% 207 24.0% 67 1.8% 5 0.0% Q 
High Activity Classes 86.4% 51 5.8% 4 6.8% 4 0.0% 0 

-92-

1 



WEST FELICIANA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

REPORT ON STATEWIDE 
AGREED-UPON PROC EDURES on COMPLIANCE and CONTROL 

AREAS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2018 

Postlethwaite & NetterviUe 

A Profeasjcxtal Accoonting Corpcwalion 

wwwfXKpa com 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

Independent Accountants' Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures I -12 

Management's Response and Corrective Action Plan 



p&N 8550 United Plaza Blvd., Ste. 1001 - Baton Roucie, LA 70809 
225-922-4600 Phone - 225-922-4611 Fax - pncp^i con-. 
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Independent Accountant's Report 
On Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

For the Year June 30,2018 

To the Members of the 
West Feliciana Parish School Board and the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the West Feliciana Parish 
School Board and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) (specified users) on the control and compliance 
(C/C) areas identified In the LLA's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period July 
I, 2017 through June 30, 2018. The Entity's management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in 
the SAUPs. 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of 
Government Auditing Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the 
specified users of this report. Con.sequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the 
procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other 
purpose. 

The procedures performed and the results thereof are set forth below. The procedure is stated first, followed 
by the results of the procedure presented in italics. If the item being subjected to the procedures is positively 
identified or present, then the results will read "no exception noted". If not, then a description of the 
exception ensues. Additionally, certain procedures listed below may not have been performed in accordance 
witli guidance provided by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, the specified user of the report. For those 
procedures, "procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior 
year or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the entity" is indicated. 

Written Policies and Procedures 

1. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe that they address each of 
the following categories and subcategories (if applicable to public funds and the entity's operations): 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending tlie budget. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor 
list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) 
controls to ensure compliance with the public bid law; and (5) documentation required to be 
maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

No exceptions noted. 
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c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Receipts^ including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and procedures 
should include management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections for each type 
of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g. periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation 
to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of trafFic ticket number sequences, agency 
fund forfeiture monies conllnnation). 

No exceptions noted. 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked. 

No exceptions noted. 

f) Contracting^ including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and 
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

No exceptions noted. 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards are to 
be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers 
of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., detennining the reasonableness of fuel card 
purchases) 

No exceptions noted. 

h) Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by 
category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers 

No exceptions noted. 

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-1121, (2) 
actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations, 
and (4) requirement that all employees, including elected officials, annually attest through signature 
verification that they have read the entity's ethics policy. 

No exceptions noted. 

j) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

No exceptions noted. 
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Board or Finance Committee 

2, Obtain and inspect the board/tinance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board*s 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and: 

a) Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency 
in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent document. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe that the minutes 
referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund and major special 
revenue funds, as well as monthly fmancial statements (or budget-to-actual comparisons, if 
budgeted) for major proprietary funds. Alternately, for those entities reporting on the non-profit 
accounting model, observe that the minutes referenced or included financial activity relating to 
public funds if those public funds comprised more than 10% of the entity's collections during the 
fiscal period. 

Budget to actual comparisons were not included in monthly board meetings from July 2017 to June 
2018. However, the comparisons were included in quarterly meetings. 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unrestricted fund 
balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unrestricted fund balance in 
the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period 
referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative unrestricted fund balance in the 
general fund. 

No exceptions noted. 

Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a listing of client bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's 
representation that tlie listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating 
account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all 
accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the 
corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for selected each account, and observe that: 

A listing of bank accounts was provided and included a total of 20 bank accounts. Management 
identified the entity's main operating account. No exceptions were noted as a result of performing 
this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we selected 5 bank accounts (1 main operating and 4 randomly) and 
obtained the bank reconciliations for the month ending June 30, 2018, resulting in 5 bank 
reconciliations obtained and subjected to the below procedures. 
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a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related 
statement closing date (e.g.. Initialed and dated, electronically logged); 

No exceptions noted, 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member who does not 
handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation (e.g., initialed and 
dated, electronically logged); and 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

No exceptions noted. 

Collections 

4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/chccks/money orders (cash) 
are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit 
sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

A listing of deposit sites was provided and included a total of 10 deposit sites. No exceptions were noted 
as a result of performing this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 deposit sites and performed the procedures below. 

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e. 5 
collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of employees about theirjob duties) 
at each collection location, and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection 
location such that: 

A listing of collection locations for each deposit site selected in procedure M H-os provided and 
included a total of 10 collection locations. No exceptions were noted as a result of performing this 
procedure. 

From each of the listings provided, we randomly selected one collection location for each deposit site. 
Review of the Entity's written policies and procedures or inquiry with employee(s) regardingjob duties 
was performed in order to perform the procedures below. 

a) Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

No exceptions noted. 
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b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making bank 
deposits^ unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation 
(e.g. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

For I of the 5 locations selected for our procedures, the employee responsible for collecting cash 
prepares/makes the bank deposit and reconciles collection documentation to the deposit. 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection entries to 
the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is responsible for 
reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

For 1 of the 5 locations selected for our procedures, the employee responsible for collecting cash 
posts collection entries to the general ledger and reconciles ledger postings to each other and the 
deposit. 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary 
ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions are not responsible for collecting cash, 
unless another employee verifies the reconciliation. 

For 1 of the 5 locations selected for our procedures, there is no formal process to reconcile cash 
collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund 
additions, by a person who is not responsible for cash collections in the collection locaiions 
selected. 

6. Inquire of management that all employees who have access to cash are covered by a bond or insurance 
policy for theft. 

No exceptions noted. 

1. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 under 
"Bank Reconciliations" above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made 
on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same 
day). Alternately, the practitioner may use a source document other than bank statements when 
selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collection log daily revenue report, receipt book, 
etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 

We randomly selected two deposit dales for each of the 5 bank accounts selected in proceditre U3. We 
obtained supporting documentation for each of the JO deposits and performed the procedures below. 

a) Observe that receipts arc sequentially prc-numbered. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

No exceptions noted. 
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c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

No exceptions noted 

d) Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location 
(within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit 
is less than $100). 

For 4 of the 10 deposits selected for testing, the deposit was not made within 1 day of the collection. 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

No exceptions noted. 

Non-payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases/payments, travel reimbursements, and petty cash 
purchases) 

8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

The listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period was provided. No exceptions were 
noted as a result of performing this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 locations and performed the procedures below. 

9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with non-
payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to employee 
job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of employees about their job 
duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that: 

The listing of employees involved with non-payroll purchasing and payment functions for each payment 
processing location selected in procedure US was provided. No exceptions were noted as a result of 
performing this procedure. 

Review of the Entity's written policies and procedures or inquiry with employee(s) regardingjob duties 
was performed in order to perform the procedures below. 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and 
placing an order/making the purchase. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

No exceptions noted. 
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c) The employee responsible for processing payments is proliibited from adding/modifying vendor 
flics, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 

For 1 of the 5 locaiiotts selected for our procedures, the person processing payments was not 
prohibited from adding / modifying vendor files. The same employee is responsible for periodic 
review of vendor files. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed 
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

No exceptions noted. 

10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement transaction 
population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's representation that 
the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, obtain supporting 
documentation for each transaction and: 

A listing of non-payroll disbursements for each payment processing location selected in procedures U8 
was provided related to the reporting period. No exceptions were noted as a result of performing this 
procedure. 

From each of the listings provided, we randomly selected 5 disbursements and performed the 
procedures below. 

a) Observe that the disbursement matched the related original invoice/billing statement. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, electronic 
logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

No exceptions noted. 

Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

11. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards 
(cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained 
possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. 

No exceptions noted. 
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12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that were 
used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each 
card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, 
and: 

From the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 credit cards used in the fiscal period. JVe randomly 
selected one monthly statement for each of the 5 cards selected and performed the procedures noted 
below. 

a) Observe that there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and supporting 
documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception reports for 
excessive fuel card usage) was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the 
authorized card holder. [Note: Requiring such approval may constrain the legal authority of certain 
public officials (e.g., mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality); these instances should not be 
reported.)] 

For 5 of the 5 credit cards tested, the monthly statement provided did not contain evidence ofreview 
by someone other than the card holder. There is no formal documentation for reviewing credit card 
statements. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

For 2 of the 5 credit cards tested, there were finance charges and late fees assessed. 

13. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding fuel cards. 
randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if (ess than 10) from each statement, and obtain 
supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e. each card should have 10 transactions subject to 
testing). For each transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an original itemized receipt that 
identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public puqjose, and 
(3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). 

We randomly selected 10 transactions for 3 of the 5 cards and a total of 16 transactions for 2 of the 5 
cards that all transactions were less than 10 from each statement in procedure #72 and performed the 
specified procedures. No exceptions noted. 

Travel and Travel-Related E^ense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

14. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly 
select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense 
documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of 
the 5 reimbursements selected: 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 
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a) If reimbursed using a per diem, agree the reimbursement rate to those rates established either by 
the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration (www.gsa.gov). 

ProcedKre was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

c) Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose 
(for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals 
participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure # 1 h). 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

d) Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than 
the person receiving reimbursement. 

Proceditre was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

Contracts 

15. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and 
supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. 
Alternately, the practitioner may w:e an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. 
Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all 
contracts if less than 5) from the listing, excluding the practitioner''s contract, and; 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year or 
the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

a) Observe that the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., solicited 
quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

b) Observe that the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by policy or law 
(e.g. Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 
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c) If the contract was amended (e.g. change order), observe that the original contract terms provided 
for such an amendment. 

Procedtire was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

d) Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice and related 
payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occitrring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

Payroll and Personnel 

16. Obtain a listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees/officials, obtain related paid 
salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel 
files. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year or 
the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

17. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees/officials selected under 
#16 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and: 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year or 
the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

a) Observe that all selected employees/officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., 
vacation, sick, compensatoiy). (Note: Generally, an elected official is not eligible to earn leave and 
does not document his/her attendance and leave. However, if the elected official is earning leave 
according to policy and/or contract, the official should document his/her daily attendance and 
leave.). 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

b) Observe that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees/officials. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

c) Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's cumulative 
leave records. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 
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18. Obtain a listing ofthoseemployees/oflicials that received termination payments during the fiscal period 
and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees/officials, 
obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's termination payment 
calculations, agree the hours to the employee/officials' cumulate leave records, and agree the pay rates 
to the employee/officials' authorized pay rates in the employee/officials' personnel files.: 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year or 
the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted hy the School Board. 

19. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of payroll taxes, retirement 
contributions, health insurance premiums, and workers' compensation premiums have been paid, and 
associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 

Procedure way not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year or 
the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

Ethics 

20. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure # 16 under "Payroll and Personnel" 
above obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

a) Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour of ethics 
training during the fiscal period. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe that die documentation demonstrates each employee/official attested through signature 
verification that he or she has read the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period. 

For all 5 employees/officials selected for our procedures, signature verification evidencing thai the 
employee/official had read the Entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period could not be obtained 

Debt Service 

21. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes issued during the fiscal period and management's representation that 
the listing is complete. Select all bonds/notes on the listing, obtain .supporting documentation, and 
observe that State Bond Commission approval was obtained for each bond/note issued. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year or 
the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted hy the School Board. 

22. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, 
obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve 
balances and payments to tliose required by debt covenants. 

Procedure way not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year or 
the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted hy the School Board. 
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Other 

23. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the misappropriation(s) to the 
legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year or 
the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

24. Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year or 
the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board 

Corrective Action 

25. Obtain management's response and corrective action plan for any exceptions noted in the above agreed-
upon procedures. 

See attached corrective action plan. 

We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which would be 
the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, 
other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those CVC areas identified 
in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this 
report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Sincerely, 

I 
December 19,2018 ' 
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PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Dedicated to Exceifence • AnctH^red ta Success • CoRnected to ttit World 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 
STATE LEGISLATIVE AUDITOR AGREED UPON PROCEDURES 

DECEMBER 19.2018 

West Feliciana Parish School Board respectfully submits the following corrective action plan for the 
year ended June 30.2018. 

Postlethwaite & Netterville. APAC 
8550 United Plaza Blvd., Suite 1001 
Baton Rouge, LA 70809 

Period; July 1,2017 to June 30,2018 

Board or Finance Committee 

2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and: 

a) Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency in 
accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent document. 

A/b exceptions noted. 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe that the minutes 
referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund and major special 
revenue fimds, as well as monthly financial statements (or budget-to-actual comparisons, if 
budgeted) for major proprietary funds. Alternately, for those entities reporting on the non-profit 
accounting model, observe that the minutes referenced or included financial activity relating to 
public funds if those public funds comprised more than 10% of the entity's collections during the 
fiscal period. 

Budget to actual comparisom were not included in monthly board meetings from July 2011 to June 
2018. However, the comparisons were included in quarterly meetings. 

Planned Corrective Action: The School Board presents monthly budget to actual comparisons 
in the boards monthly packet of information. However, the budget to actual data is only verbally 
discussed quarterly. The School Board will note in the minutes that this information is discussed in 
the monthly Superintendents report data, 

P.O. Box 1910 - 4727 Fidelity Street 
St. FrandsvHIe. LA 7077S 

225-635-3891 - FAX: 225-635-0108 

Student Success: Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow! 



Collections 

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site 
(i.e. 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties) at 
each collection location, and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection location such 
that: 

A listing ofcollection locations for each deposit site selected in procedure U4 was provided and included 
a total of 10 collection locations. No exceptions were noted as a result of performing this procedure. 

From each of the listings provided, we randomly selected one collection location for each deposit site. 
Review of the Entity *s written policies and procedures or inquiry with employee(s) regardingjob duties 
was performed in order to perform the procedures below. 

a) Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making bank 
deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation 
(e.g. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

For J of the 5 locations selected for our procedures, the employee responsible for collecting cash 
prepares/makes the bank deposit and reconciles collection documentation to the deposit 

Planned Corrective Action: Due to its size, the school board is limited in staff who are 
responsible for banking and bookkeeping procedures. The school board does have an 
additional staff person at the school level sign of on deposits ensuring accuracy and the school 
board staff reviews monthly bank reconciliations and reports to ensure deposit amounts 
match the reconciled amounts. 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection entries to the 
general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another empioyee/official is responsible for reconciling 
ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

For 1 of the 5 locations selected for our procedures, the employee responsible for collecting cash 
posts collection entries to the general ledger and reconciles ledger postings to each other and the 
deposit. 

Planned Corrective Action: Due to its size, the school board is limited in staff who are 
responsible for hanking and bookkeeping procedures. The school board does have an 
additional staff person at the school level sign of on deposits ensuring accuracy and the school 
board staff reviews monthly bank reconciliations and reports to ensure deposit amounts 
match the reconciled amounts. 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash colleclions to the general ledger and/or subsidiary 
ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions are not responsible for collecting cash, 
unless another employee verifies the reconciliation. 



For } of the 5 locations selected for our procedures, there is no formal process to reconcile cash 
collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund 
additions, by a person who is not responsible for cash collections in the collection locations selected. 

Planned Corrective Action: The revenue ledger is reviewed by school board accounting staff 
during monthly review of reconciliation reports. 

7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 under 
"Bank Reconciliations" above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made 
on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the 
same day). Alternately, the practitioner may use a source document other than bank statements 
when selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collection log. daily revenue report, 
receipt booK e/c. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 

We randomly selected two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected in procedure We 
obtained supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and performed the procedures below. 

d.) Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location 
(within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the 
deposit is less than $100). 

For 4 of the 10 deposits selected for testing, the deposit was not made within 1 day of the collection. 

Planned Corrective Action: The school board will reiterate the requirement that all deposits 
should be done within one day of the collection. However, sometimes this is not feasible due to money 
being collected on holidays such as Easter, Thanksgiving or Christmas when the school has activities 
but the ofTice stafl* is not working. 

Non-payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases/payments^ travel reimbursements^ and petty cash 
purchases) 

9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with 
non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating 
to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of 
employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that: 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor 
files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 

For 1 of the 5 locations selected for our procedures, the person processing payments was not 
prohibited from adding / modifying vendor fdes. The same employee is responsible for periodic 
review of vendor files. 

Planned Corrective Action: Changes/additions to vendor files are reviewed by Business 
Manager. 



Credil Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) tliat 
were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for 
each card (for a debit card randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting 
documentation, and: 

From the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 credit cards tised in the fiscal period. We randomly 
selected one monthly statement for each of the 5 cards selected and performed the procedures noted 
below. 

a) Observe that there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and supporting 
documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception reports for excessive 
fuel card usage) was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the authorized card 
holder. [Note: Requiring such approval may constrain the legal authority of certain public officials 
(e.g., mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality); these instances should not be reported.)] 

For 5 ofthe 5 credit cards tested, the monthly statement provided did not contain evidence ofreview 
by someone other than the card holder. There is no formal documentation for reviewing credit card 
statements. 

Planned Corrective Action: Statement reviews will be documented. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

For 2 of the 5 credit cards tested, there were finance charges and late fees assessed. 

Planned Corrective Action: Pay all balances unless questionable to avoid finance charges or 
late fees. 

Ethics 
20. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under "Payroll and 

Personnel" above obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

b) Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official attested through signature 
verification that he or she has read the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period. 

For all 5 employees/officials selected for our procedures, .signature verification evidencing that the 
employee/official had read the Entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period could not be obtained. 

Planned Corrective Action: The school board made signature verifying that employees have 
read the District's ethics policy a part of the new year procedures beginning with the 18-19 
school year. 

If there are questions regarding this plan, please call Misty Cook at (225) 635-3891. 

Sincerely, 

Misty Cook 
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A Prot^^s>h^r*o\ Accounting CcporaE/Oft 

December 19, 2018 

Members of the Board and Management 
West Feliciana Parish School Board 
St. Francisviile, Louisiana 

In planning and perfoiming our audit of the financial statements of tbe West Feliciana Parish School Board (the 
School Board) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, we considered the School Board's internal controls to 
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements and not to 
provide assurance on the internal control structure. 

However, during our audit, we becajne aware of matters that are opportunities for improving financial reporting and 
refining policies and procedures. The following paragraphs summarize our comments and suggestions regarding 
those matters. This letter does not affect our report dated December 19,2018 on the financial statements of the 
School Board. 

2018-1 

Condition: 

Recommendation: 

LA R.S. 39:1301 - 1315, as amended through Act 966 of the 2010 Legislative session, 
requires tlie School Board to cause budgets to be prepared and adopted in a prescribed 
format. That format requires, among other things, presentation of revenues, expenditures, 
and beginning and ending fund balances of general and special revenue funds. Act 966 
requires presentation of the current year's budget and actual infonnation, the budgeted 
year's information and the percentage change from the cunent year to the next year's 
budget. 

The Board's 2018-2019 budget does not contain all of the required components. 

The Board and its administration should amend its 2018-2019 budget to conform with tiie 
format prescribed by the aforementioned statute. 

Management's 
Response: The School Board will implement the above recommendations as prescribed above. 

2018-2 

Condition: 

CoHection Procedures 

During the performance of our statewide agreed-upon procedures engagement, we noted 
that I of the 5 collection locations had an employee responsible for collecting casli 
prepares/makes tlie bank deposit and reconciles collection documentation to the deposit. 
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2018-2 Collection Procedures (continued) 

Recommendation: We recommend that the School Board develop policies and procedures to ensure the 
proper segregation of duties for its collection locations. 

Management 5 
Response: We concur with the recommendation above. 

We have already discussed many of these comments and suggestions with management, and we will be pleased 
to discuss them in further detail at your convenience. We would also welcome any opportunity to perform any 
additional study of these matters or to assist you in implementing the recommendations. We would also like to 
thank the School Board staff for their patience and cooperation with us during tlie performance of the audit 
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STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR REPORT TO MANAGEMENT 

2017-1 

Condition: 

Reconnnendation: 

Enhanccmcpt of Policies and Procedures 

During the performance of our statewide agreed-upon procedures engagement we 
reviewed several control and compliance areas including those pertaining to maintenance 
of written policies and procedures. Certain of these areas were identified as having 
opportunities for improvement. 

While the School Board maintains written policies and procedures over most transactions 
and significant areas, it was noted that these written policies and procedures could be 
strengthened to reflect certain best practices as recommended by the legislative auditor, 
particularly those regarding contracting, travel expenses, ethics, and debt service. 

Management's 
Response: 

Current Status: 

The School Board's policies will he modified to address the recommendation above. 

The recommendation was implemented during the 2018 period. Thus, the matter is 
considered resolved. 

2017-2 

Condition: 

Documentation of Process Reviews 

School Board Management has communicated to us that there are controls in place for tfie 
review of certain federal program reports and journal entries. We corroborated that the 
controls were in place during our audit procedures. However, we noted that these reviews 
are not evidenced by the signing or initialing the documents or utilizing any form of 
documentation of review. 

Recommendation: 

Management's 

Current Status: 

We recommend that the review of federal program reports and journal entries be 
evidenced on the documents themselves or the use of an end of month/quarter checklist 
indicating the date of the review and the person that performed the review. 

We concur with the recommendation above. 

The recommendation was implemented during the 2018 period. Thus, the matter is 
considered re.solved. 
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